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A message
from Mayor

Two words describe this past year.
Continual improvement.

The desire to have smooth, bitumen
roads, safe water on tap, sewerage,
recreational opportunities, events,
beautiful spaces and places does
not diminish the further you live
away from the coast, it simply
becomes less achievable due
to both the limited corporate
spending in the region and a lack
of population affecting councils
financial resourcing.

With only 10,340 people (at last
count) it is vital to note that we are
expected to deliver and report on
the same things as our council
cousins. Just because we may
only have a fraction of their service
usage, our reporting requirements
to other authorities are the same
and our legislative requirements
are the same (there are around
150 different pieces of legislation
applicable to local government). To
complicate matters further (because
we love a good challenge) the size
of our region necessitates we have
to double up on some services for
customer convenience and travel
costs.

Doing more with less is now a local
government catch phrase and this
year we have been planning exactly
how we can achieve this.

We have reviewed our assets ($836
million in infrastructure) and are
currently examining our current and
future needs of these to ensure we
are spending money in the right
areas. Much of our infrastructure was
built in a different era, with different
social needs. We are working
towards a livable community where
community needs are addressed in
the most cost effective manner.

We are using data to tell the
story to the other two levels of
government. After doing a road gap
analysis we acknowledge that we

are 33% underfunded on our road
maintenance.

| don’t have to tell anyone in the
region how important it is to have this
issue rectified however explaining
the importance of our road network
to people outside the region is an
ongoing battle. As part of our battle
plan this year we have teamed
up with USQ, QUT and LGAQ to
gather data to prove the value of our
roads network to both the State and
National economies.

Roads are just one piece of the
economic puzzle of the region with
water playing another huge part.
Even though the State owns and
operates water, local government
is in the trenches daily making sure
our future needs for our industry are
being considered.

This is by no means an easy task
with water being a very political and
scarce resource.

There are many more initiatives that
council has worked on this year but |
will let this annual report tell you the
story.

To my fellow Councillors and staff,
thank you for your friendship and
support over yet another busy,
challenging yet exciting year.

When all is said and done, a positive
plan and a positive attitude doesn’t
fix things. A positive plan, a positive
attitude and positive action does. |
look forward to seeing the fruits of
our labour in the next twelve months
and hold my head high knowing that
this council is doing the best it can
with the resources it has available
to provide a better future for our
community and is passionate,
proactive and genuinely caring in
doing so.

Rachel Chambers
Mayor



Gary
Rinehart

On behalf of North Burnett Regional
Council it is a great pleasure to
present Council’'s Annual Report for
the year 2017-18.

I was not in this role during 2017-
2018 and | thank Council, former
Chief Executive Officer Mark Pitt and
his team and all our hard working
community groups for the dedicated
work done in delivering the 2017-
2018 Annual Operational Plan. In
the short time | have been in the role
| have come to appreciate the work
that was undertaken throughout the
year and | am looking to build on
that work during this year.

The following are highlights of
achievements from the year and
each are discussed in greater detail
within the report.

« ONE TEAM organisational
review

* Works programme and delivery

of capital works (bridge
replacement and drainage
works)

» Efficient and effective use of
grant funding across a variety
of Council functions and
programs,

* Improvements in Enterprise
Risk Management

* Annual inspections of North
Burnett aerodromes and
rectification plans

» Collaborative projects  with
neighbouring Councils

At the end of June 2018, Council’s
financial position while relatively
strong also presents significant
challenges and the elected
members, management and staff
are working diligently to meet those

challenges.

Across all financial reporting
indicators Council achieved solid
results however the results are
greatly influenced by the pre-
payment of $5.8 million payment
from the Local Government Grants
Commission (prior to 30 June 2018)
for the coming 2018-19 year.

It's really tough for small Councils
like the North Burnett too fund
infrastructure renewal let alone
provide new infrastructure. Council
is actively lobbying the Federal
Government to restore local
government funding to 1% of the
total Federal Government Taxation.

This would give us the capacity
to not only maintain Council’s
existing assets but would create
the opportunity to provide essential
infrastructure needed to genuinely
grow the local economy. Advocacy
work is  paramount  across
governments and key stakeholders
for a greater share of the overall tax
pie.

Council will continue the
development of Asset Management
Plans to ensure that our limited
financial resources are used to the
best advantage.

| am excited to be here in the North
Burnett and really looking forward to
the year ahead.

Gary Rinehart
Chief Executive Officer
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Cr Faye Whelan

P: 0409 625 956
E: Faye.Whelan@northburnett.gld.gov.au

Cr Paul Lobegeier

P: 0458 625 952
E: Paul.Lobegeier@northburnett.qld.gov.au

Born at Gayndah and having lived all
of my life in North Burnett, with the last
47 years at Mundubbera, | have a great
passion for our region. Many of my
mother’s extended family descendants
still live in the Gayndah through to Monto
area with our family dating back to the
early 1850’s so you can appreciate that
sometimes | think I'm related to half of
the population.

| am lucky to have a supportive family
who looks after my private businesses to
allow me the time to devote to community
in my role of Councillor.

| have seen many changes to Local
Government over my long career in the
sector and unfortunately some of the
issues identified in the recent Belcarra
Report as happening in some Councils
has tarnished the reputation of many hard
working innocent representatives that |
have had the privilege to work alongside

The past twelve months has, once again,
been productive and positive for our
region. Council is continually improving
the Portfolio system to achieve better
outcomes across the board for both staff
and community. The time old story still
remains of not enough funds to cover
demand, which will always be the real
issue.

Our road network, | believe, is getting
much better but the demand on the
network is higher. Meeting the challenge
is the issue, as well as taking the
community with us as we try to meet the
challenges in the year ahead.

I would like to thank my fellow Councillors
and the staff who work together on the
Arts and Cultural portfolio group of the
Council. The Regional Arts Development
Fund, a partnership between Council and
the Queensland Government through
Arts Queensland, has supported local
and aspiring artists to hold events,
workshops, professional development
and community arts and cultural projects
throughout the region. Community
members have also been involved with

across the State of Queensland. | can
assure the ratepayers of North Burnett
that we have governance procedures in
place to make sure that both Council and
staff are held accountable.

Towards the end of the year, Council
bid farewell to its Chief Executive
Officer, Mark Pitt who took up the same
role in neighbouring South Burnett
Regional Council. | personally want to
acknowledge his long service to North
Burnett and the support he gave me.

Many challenges face North Burnett as
a region for example but not limited to
low population growth and long road
lengths to maintain. This Council is up
for the challenge and we will continue to
work diligently lobbying for more money
to come into our region and protect
our agriculture industries that are so
important to North Burnett.

training weekends, producing better
outcomes and building a bright future for
arts throughout the North Burnett region.

The Drive Inlands Promotion Assoc
(DIPA) self-drive route in the North
Burnett is proving to be a step in the
right direction for our tourism efforts
and is continually improving the roads
for our traveling public. We are still
working to encourage these travelers
to stay and take time to explore our
‘Naturally Beautiful’ region to achieve
the best outcome. The work upgrades
we are doing with RV stops and caravan
parks is a step in the right direction, with
Council completing the RM Williams
Australian Bush Learning Centre Tourism
Enhancement Project and commencing
the Mingo Crossing Master Plan. Our
Council must continue to work with
group like DIPA, Bundaberg & North
Burnett Tourism and Tourism and Events
Queensland to build this important
industry in the North Burnett.

Council has been busy once again but
enjoyable and | look forward to serving
the community.



Cr Peter Webster

Division 2

P: 0458 625 951

E: PeterWebster@northburnett.gld.gov.au

Cr John Zahl
Division 4

P: 0458 625 005
E: John.Zahl@northburnett.gld.gov.au

This year, as in previous years, has been
quite a challenge to maintain Council’'s
road network and deliver services across
the region.

In Eidsvold, the new gymnasium has
been completed which is proving very
popular with residents. The long awaited
planter boxes have been installed which
has brightened up the Main Street. The
RM Williams Australian Bush Learning
Centre upgrades have been completed
with the playground being a big hit with
the local children. It is great to see the
outdoor kitchen and eatery being used
by local families. The light show is being

enjoyed by tourists with very positive
feedback.

Going forward the maintenance and
upgrades of our road network will be
a high priority for next year while still
delivering an acceptable level of service
to our communities.

The last twelve months has seemingly
passed very quickly, and | believe during
this time we have seen some very
positive changes and improvements
occur within our Council region.

It is pleasing to report that many projects
have been completed in our communities
to enhance our standards and
infrastructure, particularly in our Parks
and Open Spaces areas. The past year
has seen completion of improvements
to our main streets in Monto and Mount
Perry, along with the completion of the
RM Williams Australian Bush Learning
Centre tourism enhancement project in
Eidsvold, to name but a few.

Our Council has continued to pursue
State and Federal governments for
funding to undertake, for example, the
replacement of the Boyne River Bridge,
the sealing of the remaining sections
of the Gayndah - Mount Perry Road
and the Monto - Mount Perry Road,
and the upgrade of the Mundubbera
- Boondooma Road. Council would
also like to reassure residents that
all opportunities to seek funding for
upgrade of Council’'s assets, such as
roads, bridges, airports and the like, are
pursued wherever possible.

Across our region our Council, through

our Mayor, my fellow Councillors, and our
dedicated staff, continue to be involved
on a daily basis in the sporting and
community events within our region, and
assisting wherever possible; in addition,
being a voice seeking to be heard in the
areas of health, arts and culture, and
tourism on behalf of our communities.

Our direction in the coming year shall
continue on as usual, and remain focused
strongly on the area of road maintenance
and improvement generally; our road
network is in fact the fifth largest in the
State. Our financial stability is of utmost
importance, and must be maintained and
built on from the work done in the past,
whilst at the same time ensuring that our
capital and works plans are carried out.

| believe that the past year has been
productive, that being in no small part
due to the efforts of the dedicated staff
of our Council. | would thank you all for
your input and efforts.

In closing | would thank my fellow
Councillors for their support, and state
simply that we as a group would propose
to continue to improve all areas over
which we have some influence to ensure
that the North Burnett remains a great
place to reside.




Cr John Bowen

Division 5

P: 0458 625 961

E: John.Bowen@northburnett.qgld.gov.au

Cr Robbie Radel
Division 6

P: 0458 625 950
E: Robert.Radel@northburnett.gld.gov.au

Having resided in the North Burnett
for 55 years and living in the vicinity

of Mingo Crossing and Ban Ban

Springs | am pleased to report that

the last 12 months has seen continual
improvements to Council and its
operations.

Being the Division 5 representative of

Council, |1 have made every effort to
spend time talking to ratepayers and
listening to their concerns. This also
involves my time in assisting local
community and sporting events. One
of my favorite pastimes is finding sites
of many one teacher schools that were
once dotted around the area, and |
continue to do this when time permits.

| am happy to report that work carried
out on our roads is still of a high
standard, including that of flood works.

The Aranbanga (Deep) Creek bridge

replacement has been funded by both
the Federal and State governments
and is progressing well. The upgrade
of the foot path in Mt Perry Main
Street, funded through the State
Governments Works for Queensland
and North Burnett Regional Council
is now complete and looks great.
Council continues to hold a strong cash
position.

I will continue to advocate for the
residents of the North Burnett and
believe the North Burnett is a great
place to live.

Council has undergone an
organisational restructure in the recent
months, which has brought about some
challenges and some opportunities for
change and improvement within our
Council. As we all continue to work with
the new structure, we have also seen
some changes in key management roles
and staffing. The changes in structure
have been made to fit the direction the
current council believe to be the best
way forward for our region.

As always, the decision to raise rates
is not a popular one, but one that is
forced on us by the State Government.
In keeping this rise lower than the
recommendation made by State
Government, we try to walk the fine line
of remaining viable as an organisation
whilst inflicting as little financial burden
on the ratepayers of our region as
possible. All councillors are ratepayers

themselves, so understand fully the
financial strain that rate rises can cause.

Council will continue to seek savings
wherever possible and implement these
in the most effective way we can, an
example being the installation of solar
power on several of our largest power
using facilities, courtesy of the ‘Works
for Queensland’ funding received.



OFFICE OF THE CEO

Traineeship & Apprenticeship Program

Council continues to invest in entry level employment
opportunities enabling its workforce to cultivate new
generations of local government specialists. Council has
again been successful in attaining subsidised traineeship
and apprenticeship positions via the Queensland
Government’s Skilling Queenslanders for Work Initiative
— First Start Program, and attracting additional funding for
community recovery as a Local Government area affected
by ex-Tropical Cyclone Debbie.

Traineeship and apprenticeship positions supported in

2017-18:

» 2 Apprentice Mechanics (Certificate Ill in Mobile Plant
Technology/ Engineering Mechanical — Diesel)

4 Trainee Administration Officers (Certificate Il in
Business Administration)

« 1 Trainee Labourer - Parks and Open Spaces
(Certificate Il in Parks and Gardens)

* 4 Trainee Labourers - Civil Works (Certificate Il in
Civil Construction)




‘One Team’

Organisational Review

In late June 2017, Council resolved to receive an organisational
review report and create three (3) new Departments, Corporate
and Community Services, Works, and Strategy, Innovation and
Assets.

Council considered that a three (3) department structure was
considered appropriate for the next stage of its organisational
development as it would enable Council to achieve the ambitious
vision articulated in the 2017-2022 Corporate Plan. More
specifically, “One Team” aims to:

»  Deliver a structure capable of delivering strategic objectives;
«  Expand or improve strategic capability;

»  Allow for leadership development of senior executives; and
»  Establish career path options for employees.

A project plan was developed and in August 2017 the project
commenced with the former CEO informing staff of the “One
Team” restructure project via a Skype team meeting and face to
face at all Council depots.

Staff were informed that their input into the restructure would
be welcomed and a comprehensive consultation program was
undertaken. Staff were able to provide feedback face to face, via
the “One Team” email and via phone. Staff were also invited to
participate in individual or team interviews and regular updates
were sent out to staff via the ‘All Staff email and staff newsletter.
Additional visits to depots were also undertaken to ensure all
outside staff had the opportunity to be involved and put forward
their views.

At the conclusion of the consultation period over 50% of the staff
had been involved in face to face discussions with steering group
members, or had provided feedback via phone or email to the
team. A number of staff also provided proposed organisational
charts.

The proposed model consists of the 3 streams identified
by Council; General Manager Corporate and Communities,
General Manager Strategy, Innovation and Assets and General
Manager Works. Under these three streams the model proposes

ONE

TEAM

8 Managers. The rationale for the organisation of this third tier
management level is given below.

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY

The Department of Corporate and Community manages Council's
finances, public relations, governance and business systems and
provides a range of community support, community services and
engagement activities to enhance the lifestyle and liveability of
the North Burnett Region. The new General Manager, Brad Duke
commenced work at Council on 13 November 2017.

STRATEGY INNOVATION AND ASSETS

The Department of Strategy, Innovation and Assets develops,
maintains and delivers Council's Strategy, Innovation and Asset
Management services across all of Councils operations and
provides a range of services and facilities to enhance the lifestyle
and liveability of the North Burnett Region.

In determining the composition of this Department, considerable
thought was given to Council’'s aim to improve the strategic
operation of Council; creating a work area with the skill sets
to develop and manage plans for the future including; Asset
Management plans, Planning Schemes, Environmental
Management Plans and Economic Development Plans. All of
these planning processes will deliver a future focused council
that allows for more strategic and efficient use of councils assets
(including staff) to enhance the economic viability of the region
and improve Council’s strategic capability. The new General
Manager, Trevor Harvey commenced this role on 2 November
2017.

WORKS

The Department of Works manages Council's infrastructure and
technical systems and provides a range of services and facilities
to enhance the lifestyle and liveability of the North Burnett
Region. The main role changes will be the transition of planning
and strategic direction functions to the Department of Strategy,
Innovations and Assets. Council is in the process of finalising the
recruitment of the new General Manager Works.



Learning
& Development

Council’'s commitment to promoting a culture that trains and develops

its workforce, has seen the following outcomes during the year:

* Increase retention rates through professional development;

»  Mitigate risk of financial and non-financial pressure associated
with retraining;

* Increase return on investment to the region and the community;

* Increase retention of corporate knowledge during times of
turnover;

»  Provide opportunities for staff to gain professional development
which will extend their capacity for the greater benefit of the
organisation;

*  Promotion as employer of choice — development opportunities.

During 2017-18, the Council staff training budget was primarily
focussed on compliance and safety with additional system and
individual professional development courses delivered. These
included:

«  Traffic Management Implementation Program

» First Aid & CPR

*  WH&S Due Diligence for Supervisors

*  Microsoft Office Outlook

*  Records Management System

*  Public Information Disclosures

*  Risk Management

*  Chemical Handling

»  Certificate IV in Library and Information Services

«  Conferences and Forums

»  Disaster Management

»  Certificate IV in Water Operations

Staff Turnover

11.45%
2016/17

2012/13 | 2011/12

2015/16 | 2014/15 | 2013/14

18.61% | 14.29%
2010/11 | 2009/10 | 2008/09

Full Time Equivalent
(FTE) employees

excluding trainees and apprentices

30/06/17

203.3
30/06/13 | 30/06/12

204 204
30/06/16 | 30/06/15 | 30/06/14

216.9 240.3 224.5
30/06/11 | 30/06/10 | 15/03/08




Work Health & Safety (WHS)
Safety doesn't happen by accident

Workers Compensation

Local Government Workcare (LGW)

LGW Workers Compensation Claim costs for 2017-18 have
remained low. Council can continue to look forward to premium
reduction in future years.

Benchmarking Performance Comparison
Following comparison with other Councils of Lost Time Injury
Frequency Ratio (LTIFR - Lost Time Injuries per million hours
worked), Council has a recommended target of 15 for 2017-18. A
LTIFR of 19.1 maintaining the overall downward trend.

Health and Safety Committee

The committee, including executive management and nominated
staff representatives has proved effective in the consultation
process and promoting work health and safety throughout Council.

Work Health and Safety Audit

LGW conducted a work health and safety audit of Council during
2017-18. Council achieved a score of 72.8% exceeding the required
benchmark of 70% and qualifying Council for a ‘Bronze Award’ that
was presented to Council.

The Audit Report provided a number of recommendations, the
majority have been addressed.

Drug and Alcohol Testing

During 2017-18 Council introduced random Drug and Alcohol
testing with establishment and training conducted during 2017 and
random testing implemented during 2018. As at 30 June 2018,
there has been 3 rounds of random drug and alcohol testing with
all results being negative.

Statistics

201718 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Days Lost 24 4 39 79 80
Lost Time
Injuries (LTI) 8 2 ¢ 1o ¢
Lost Time
Injury For the 2017-18 year Council had 93
Frequency 19.01 4.65 20.9 23.76 ARE reported WHS Incidents slightly down from
Ratio (LTIFR) 95 in 2016-17; 30 being injuries including
Duration Rate 3 2 4.88 79 8.8 8 Lost Tlme Injuries (LTIs) and 1 lliness.
The remainder were 15 near misses as
well as 36 plant damage and 12 other
480/0 39% 130/0 .dar.nage. COU[?C.I| s goallls to best eliminate
e incidents and injuries with the overall trend
InJurles Plant Other improving. Regular reporting of Near Miss
Near misses, LTIs Damage Damage Incidents is positive and encouraged.




CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY

The delivery of Council ICT roles and responsibilities are
underpinned by the following principles:

1. Strategic Alignment - ICT strategic decisions will be driven by
and aligned with corporate strategies and requirements.

2. Engage with the Internal Clients - ICT will engage early
with internal clients to ensure that ICT requirements for business
initiatives are captured, clearly defined and adequately budgeted.
3. ICT Infrastructure - On current capacity, the ICT infrastructure
will be simple, well architected, integrated, reliable and secure.

4. Service Excellence - ICT will deliver timely, reliable and
consistent support service to internal clients.

During 2018-19 preliminary work will commence on an ICT
Strategic Plan.

This plan’s goal is to align Council’s investment in ICT with its
corporate objectives, while ensuring community expectations
are met. The aim of the Strategy is to drive improved customer
service by delivering ICT services that increase efficiencies while
maximising effectiveness and minimising costs.

The ICT Strategic Plan is focused on pragmatic actions that
Council can take over the next five years.

During 2017-18 Councils ICT stream has been undertaking a
range of projects assisting efficiency of Council processes, and
ensuring consistent, reliable and effective access to the resources
staff need to achieve their objectives.

Computer Replacements

Staff have continued the rollout of energy efficient, high performance
small form factor computers. These computers use a fraction of
the power a traditional desktop computers. They however provide
comparable, often better, performance then the traditional desktop
computer.

Video Conferencing
Enhancements have been made

to Councils video conferencing
system, providing a rich high
definition audio and video solution.
The system provides connectivity
not only internally between Council
offices, but externally to third parties
such State Government agencies
like the Public Safety Business
Agency.

Core Software Updates

Upgrade to core software packages continued to ensure that
systems are secure, current and compatible with current standards.
Updated software included;

*  Microsoft Office Suite

*  Adobe AutoCAD

*  GIS Solutions including MaplInfo and IntraMaps
»  Skype for Business

»  Citrix XenApp

Digital Radio Project
The new digital radios for Councils fleet were continued to be
rolled out as part of the multi-year project.

An upgraded communication site was established to provide better
coverage in the area south of Gayndah and Mundubbera.

Planning for additional sites was undertaken to enhance coverage
in areas west of Mundubbera and south of Eidsvold, and north of
Monto.

Security Audit

A company specializing in information technology security was
engaged to test Councils external facing systems. This was
to ensure there were no known vulnerabilities and to provide
guidance on how Council can improve its security.



Risk Management
Framework

The components of the Risk Management Framework provide
the foundations and organisational arrangements for designing,
implementing, monitoring, reviewing and continually improving
risk management throughout the organisation. The development
of the North Burnett Regional Council Risk Management
Framework is being undertaken in a way that aligns with ISO
31000 — Risk Management and included the following five (5)
components:

1. Risk Management Policy

2. Risk Management Plan

3. Accountability Mechanisms

4. Resourcing

5. Communication

The endorsement of this framework and plan commits Council
to a programme to embrace risk management philosophies
within the business as second nature via ongoing training,
development and awareness strategies.

Council adopted its Risk Management Policy at the Planning
and Policy Committee meeting on 5 July 2017 as well as a Risk
Management Process Procedure and Fact Sheet.

The next step in implementing the adopted Risk Management
Framework was a focus on training awareness and
communications.

1. Staff Training Program

2. Communication and consultation with staff through team
meetings

3. Continue to raise the profile of Risk Management with
volunteers and community groups.

From November 2017, specific Risk Management Training with
key operational staff has occurred that included a familiarisation
with Council’s adopted Plan and conducting risk assessment
scenario exercises with approximately 40 participants.

In addition the development of a revised Strategic Risk
Register including a review of current policies, framework and
recommending amendments where necessary and facilitating
the development of a formal central risk register for review and
adoption by Council

Towards the end of the year a draft Business Continuity Plan

has been prepared that will put in place procedures for Council
and staff to follow in the event of an incident or crisis.

There will be response plans put in place that will map out
incident responsibilities for nominated staff members to follow
both during and after an incident occurs, as well as for remaining
staff members to maintain normal operations. The four (4)
elements include:
1. Prevention

2. Preparedness
3. Response

4. Recovery




Records Management

Local Government is often considered the tier of government ‘closest
to the people’ and is involved in many activities that affect the everyday
lives of the community.

With such a broad scope of responsibilities, effective records
management by Council’s is critical.

A systematic approach to the management of records is essential to
protect and preserve records as evidence of business activity, decisions
and actions. Council operates MagiQ docs as its records management
system. This e-system is a major source of information about business
activities that can support subsequent activities and business decisions,
as well as ensuring accountability to present and future stakeholders.
In March 2018, key staff had a behind the scenes tour of the Queensland
State Archives (QSA). QSA promote the implementation of appropriate
recordkeeping principles and practices across public authorities and
regulate the retention and disposal of public records.

Staff were given first hand advice and experience on how to store and
preserve our records, transfer permanent records, record retention and
disposal, and online training for all employees.

Important Stats for 2017-2018

letters received via mail

emails received to admin@northburnett.qld.gov.au

customer services requests

Information
Awareness

Month

In May 2018, the Records
team hosted Information
Awareness Month. It was an
opportunity to promote records
and information management
in our organisation and raise
awareness of the industry and
the important role it plays.

Over 100 Council employees
received ftraining in our
electronic document records
management system. Better
recordkeeping practices
improve our efficiency,
customer service and fulfill our
statutory requirements.




North Burnett Tra

The North Burnett Transport Service is operated by
the North Burnett Regional Council under contract with
TransLink (Queensland Government).

The service operates four (4) days per week and residents
and visitors can travel to and from Bundaberg and
Maryborough where additional TransLink services such as
the Tilt Train can provide transport to larger centres.

As the figures below indicate, patronage on the service is
growing annually.

Total passenger numbers for the last three years :
e 2015-16 — 2,921
+ 2016-17 — 3,055
+ 2017-18 — 3,243

Council strives to provide a quality transport service for the
community and the majority of feedback from customers
has been positive.

2017/18 NBTS Ticket Sales

® Adul Concession W Child/Student

MNorth Burnett Transport Service

TR

UL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

TOTAL PRSSENGERS

MONTH OF TRAVEL

® 201516 S016/17 w2017/18




Contact Centre

Your link to Council

The Contact Centre was established in November 2014 acting as Council’s main link between the customer and the rest of the
organisation - providing timely, up-to-date and accurate information and advice to the community.

Contact Centre Call Activity - July 2017 to June 2018
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Streamlined Service

North Burnett Regional Council is committed to delivering
professional and friendly service to the public, through the six
Customer Service Centres.

Customer Service Statistics

«  People Counter Numbers — 120,621
+  QGAP Transactions — 3,721
Centrelink Transactions - 1,674




Eidsvold Customer Service
Centre Re-design

In early February 2018, the Eidsvold Customer Service Centre
received a re-vamp which involved the movement of the adult
fiction, non-fiction, Eidsvold Norwegian display and the addition of
two (2) computers to utilise the space more effectively.



Library programs

Council’s libraries hosted a range of children programs and
activities throughout the year to support language and literacy
development, engagement with libraries and to build lifelong
learning habits. Programs included the summer reading club,
holiday craft programs by local artist Rachel Koster, North Burnett
Bush Bots tournament and the Discover your senses road show
during Science week.

Blue Gum Farm Kids
Christmas concerts

Blue Gum Farm Kids Christmas concerts, performed by local
artist Cila Slack, toured the region in December 2017, funded by
First Five Forever program. The concerts were interactive and
celebrated life in the Australian bush in a fun and entertaining
way by incorporating songs, dance, puppets and storytelling. The
concerts were well attended across the region with 330 attendees.

School Holiday craft -
Monto Library

Discover your senses —
Mundubbera Library

Blue Gum Farm concert - Monto



First Five Forever
program

Council has continued to offer weekly Storytime
sessions at each library branch thanks to the
First Five forever program, an initiative of the
State Library of Queensland and Queensland
Government, with 203 sessions offered and 845
participants.

The program is designed to help support families
with developing early literacy capabilities for all
Queensland children aged 0-5 years old. Storytime
was previously offered throughout the region at
the same day and time. In response to community
feedback and consultation alternate dates and
times for Eidsvold, Gayndah and Mt Perry were
implemented. The change of dates have been
well received by the community with attendance
increasing. Eidsvold Storytime is now delivered
by the Library staff at the local kindergarten to
promote the first five forever program and to
introduce children to the facilities available at their
local Library.

Library statistics 2017-2018

38 y 834 physical items borrowed across the region.

CHILLDREN'S

Storytime. & Cratt Sessions
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For ages O - 5 with parents
DATE THEME

BIGGENDEN - EIDSVOLD - GAYNDAH - MONTO - MUNDUBBERA - PERRY

rstatorever

3, 1 96 eResource transactions which include eBook and eAudio books and electronic service downloads e.g. music. This is an

increase of 30% from the previous financial year.

3, 1 1 4 current Library members in 2017/2018, which is an increase of 19.36% from the previous financial year.

297 programs were offered in 2017-2018 with 1 ,752 participants.

Program and events include digital literacy programs, early and family literacy programs and other library run public events and learning

programs.




STEM.I.AM

Council was successful in receiving grant funding from State
Libraries Queensland to deliver a STEM.I.LAM project to staff,
teachers and students in the North Burnett, focusing on Eidsvold
due to its high indigenous population. The project was delivered
in 4 parts:

Part 1: Professional Development

School teachers and staff, Council Community Development
Officers and Library staff participated in two professional
development workshops. Workshops were delivered by Coder
Kidz, a not for profit organisation, who demonstrated the use of
Arduino kits, Robotics and Coding programs to allow participants
to become mentors in their schools, libraries and communities.

Professional development workshop for NBRC staff

Part 2: Eidsvold State School workshops

Coder Kidz delivered 4 sessions to Eidsvold State School students
focusing on coding and Robotics. Students also observed the 3D
printer at work. The maijority of these students had little exposure
to these topics previously and thoroughly enjoyed the opportunity
to explore and create with new technology and opportunities.

Part 3: Coding club programs

Seven North Burnett Schools elected to participate in the
Coding Club programs held during lunch breaks. Teaching and
Council staff assisted in the delivery of the program. The Coding
Club program was used to educate and prepare students for
participation in a STEM Tournament to be held at the end of the
2017 school year. Coder Kidz was able to present a workshop
to a cluster of small Schools at Binjour Plateau State Primary
School. Three (3) schools were in attendance and worked on a
rotational basis on a variety of STEM projects.

Binjour Plateau Cluster Schools workshop

Part 4: Bush Bots Tournament

A North Burnett Bush Bots STEM.I.LAM Tournament was held at
Eidsvold State School on 7 December 2017. 8 teams participated
in the Tournament, 6 primary school teams and 2 senior teams.
Students were challenged to produce a Scratch coding game and
animation as well as construct and successfully code a Robot.
Teams were also judged on best team work and coolest team
name. A variety of prizes were awarded for each of the categories,
enabling schools to go home with Arduino kits, drones, robots and
an overall team prize of a 3D printer.

Eidsvold State School Student workshop

Bush Bots Tournament Team



Community Connection

Social Cohesion

Community Garden

- 13 Leichhardt Street (ongoing)

A local Mundubbera community group has been granted a permit to
occupy vacant land in Leichhardt Street, Mundubbera. The Tongan
Community group are using the vacant land as a community garden
for people to come and socialise, while bringing them a sense of
familiarity while they visit the region.

Mundubbera Welcome Event

110 people attended this event held on Tuesday night 24 April
2018 to welcome seasonal (citrus) workers to the region. The event
involved local Mundubbera community groups providing Australian
and multi cultural cuisines while watching some authentic Australian
recreational activities.

Gayndah Welcome Event

180 people attended this event held on Friday night 27 April 2018
to welcome seasonal (citrus) workers to the region. The event
involved local Gayndah community groups providing Australian
and multicultural cuisines while watching soccer between Gayndah
and the ‘rest of the world’.

Operation Rebuild Tonga

This event occurred on Saturday, 28 April 2018 to help raise funds
for the Kingdom of Tonga following the destruction caused by
Tropical Cyclone Gita. The initiative was driven by the local Social
Cohesion Standing Committee. Over $13,000 was raised during
the night and through donations post event. The funding was used
to purchase items that were sent to the Kingdom of Tonga to be
distributed to those who were most affected by the Cyclone.

Operation Rebuild Tonga Fundraiser
28 April 2018



Sport & Recreation

Get Out Get Active Program

Council was successful in obtaining a grant from the Queensland
Government, to develop and deliver a series of programs to
encourage and increase the participation of women in active sport
and recreational activities. The North Burnett “Get Out Get Active”
program consisted of two components:

1. “Walk off The K’s” — a 10,000 steps initiative promoting
the benefit of active recreation and being more active within
community open spaces. This program encouraged women
to participate in a ‘Team Challenge’ across the North Burnett,
providing a group environment for support and encouragement.

2. “Activate you” — a program which promoted the benefits of
healthy lifestyles, mental health improvement, and improving
lifestyles of those at risk of or with Chronic illness including being
active as an individual or group. This twelve (12) week program
provided women with one-on-one specialized training to actively
work towards their key health improvement outcomes.

This program was a huge success with 100% positive feedback
from both participants and the trainers involved. Many participants
decided to continue with the activities post-program, which has led
to long term benefits for both participants and trainers.

As part of the project a series of Walking Maps throughout the
Region in each major town has been developed. All maps include
3 levels — easy, medium and hard - color coded to match and are
mapped to take in Cafés, local sights, footpaths, all parks and open
spaces.

High Level Infrastructure and
Facility Plan

Wide Bay Burnett Regional Organisation of Councils (WBBROC)
is currently in the final stages of the High Level Infrastructure
and Facility Plan (ongoing since 2017) with North Burnett having
several items included such as Motocross, Scampers cricket
grounds, Campdraft and Polocrosse falling into the high level
facilities category.

All North Burnett National Parks, State Forest and water ways have
also been shown as part of the water trails (Wide Bay best assets).

The Water Trails publication has been distributed widely across
and outside the North Burnett region, aiming to not only promote
the natural beauty to tourists, but also to local residents.

Sport and Recreation Strategy
and Infrastructure Plans

A collaborative project involving North Burnett Regional Council,
South Burnett Regional Council and Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
Council. During the year Council appointed a Sport and Recreation
Officer that, among other responsibilities, would lead the Sport and
Recreation Strategy and Infrastructure Project involving the South
Burnett Regional Council and the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
Council.

The project, funded through the State Government, will produce a
strategy and plan for each local government as well as identifying
cross regional opportunities for the furthering of sport and recreation
for the next 10 years.

The Plan involved significant community consultation and is
expected to be completed by the end of 2018.




Swimming pools

The Monto, Gayndah, Biggenden, and Mundubbera public
swimming pool contracts were offered for expressions
of interest and tender for a four (4)year contract. These
arrangements are nearing completion. Tenderers will be
asked to develop a variety of programs and activities for
all age groups.

Fitness Centres

The 2018 financial year saw the addition of a new Fitness
Centre in Eidsvold. The North Burnett Fitness Centre
includes a community gym and boxing club area. The front
area of the facility will be used for exercise class sessions.
Since opening, gym membership has been popular and
the feedback from the Eidsvold Community has been very
positive.

The Mundubbera Community Gym also benefited from
a Capital Works Budget budget, with significant repairs
and maintenance conducted during the year. The Gym
memberships continue to increase each year.

Regional Group Support Sports Libraries

North Burnett Regional Council supported the following sport and New sports equipment was purchased for the 2017-18 summer
recreational clubs, groups and organisations throughout the 2017- season. This investment increases public use equipment provided
18 year: for the sports equipment library in all six (6) Council libraries.

+ Biggenden Tennis Some items included in the kits are:
»  Biggenden Combined Sport group

*  Musco Lighting Application for users and Management — o il ?UP P?ddle Boards
Gayndah, Monto, Mundubbera *  New Tennis Equipment

+  Monto Netball (grant application site planning) *  Street Soccer — Football — Basket Ball

«  Gayndah Athletics (New Long jump — Regional Athletics *  Softball Kits
Carnival) »  General recreational type equipment

* Gayndah Sports Field Development / Management Plan
(under development) testing, coring and sanding all under way

*  Gayndah Swimming Club (site planning and grants)

»  Biggenden Swimming Club

*  Central Burnett Motocross (site planning and group assistance)
»  Sporting Facility Management planning



Game On Queensland
Program

The Queensland Government, through the
Embracing 2018 Legacy Program for the Gold Coast
2018 Commonwealth Games, provided $40,000
to Council to deliver a ‘Game On Queensland’
Program.

This project comprised of 2 main aspects:
*  The North Burnett Mini-Commonwealth Games
*  The Small Halls Come and Try component.

During March 2018, schools within the North Burnett
region participated in the ‘Game On Queensland’
program during the lead up to the Gold Coast
Commonwealth Games. Over 1,000 students were
involved in making this program a success.

Schools that participated included:
» Biggenden State School

. Mundubbera State School

» Boynewood State School - including
Monogorilby and Binjour State Schools

» St Joseph’s State School
* Gayndah State School

* Monto Combined Schools — Monto State
School, Abercorn State School, Mulgildie State
School, St Therese’s Primary School and
Monto State High School.

Six (6) satellite communities were nominated by
Councillors to host a ‘Come and Try’ day in their
local community halls. The participating community
halls were Mungungo hosting a dance night,
Dallarnil come and try Cattle cutting classes, Mt.
Perry Tai Chi lessons and Coalstoun Lakes Dance
lessons. The community hall committees expressed
sincere gratitude to be given the opportunity to try
something new in their halls.

The Come and Try days were conducted in June
with continuing lessons occurring on a weekly basis
thereafter.
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Australia Day 2018

Award Recipients - Biggenden

Citizen of the Year

Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year

Senior Sports Award
Junior Sports Award
Sports Administrator Award
Senior Cultural Award
Junior Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Mr Phillip Sharps
Mr Gerry Houton

Biggenden State School - 125th
Anniversary & Gala Fete

Miss Tamara Buczma

Miss Emi Carlson

Mrs Nicole Gibbs

Woowonga Hall Committee
Biggenden Friends of Red Cross

Mr Brian Lowe

Award Recipients - Eidsvold

Citizen of the Year

Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year
Junior Sports Award

Senior Sports Award

Sports Administrator

Senior Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Mrs Lori & Mr Lyle Murray

Mr Toby Hamilton

Gold Rush Night - Mr Richard
Roth & Mr Noel Thompson

Miss Ella Fort
Ms Leah Read
Ms Deb O’Rourke
Ms Laurel Bayles

Ms Rebecca Wicks

Award Recipients - Gayndah
Citizen of the Year
Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year
Junior Sports Award
Sports Administrator’s Award

Junior Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Mr Boyd Baker

Mr Zane Ratcliff
Cardigans and Caberbnet
Ms Sarah Duncan

Mr Gavin Berrie

Ms Lauren Trott

Mr Brenden Harris
Ms Stacey Duncan

Award Recipients - Monto
Citizen of the Year
Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year
Junior Sports Award
Senior Sports Award
Sports Administrator Award
Junior Cultural Award
Senior Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Local Hero Award

Mr Herbert & Mrs Gladys Brown
Miss Lani Pickering

Monto Sheriff’s Trivia Night
Miss Tara Staines

Ms Taylah Steger

Ms Belinda Barnett

Ms Nanci Wilson

Mrs Elizabeth Robertson

Mrs Marge Myles

BCCA - Melinda Clarke, Katie
Muller, Kendall Muller & Naomi
Purcell - NBRC J Voigt

Award Recipients - Mt Perry
Citizen of the Year
Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year
Junior Sports Award
Senior Sports Award
Sports Administrator’s Award
Junior Cultural Award
Senior Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Ms Kym Cleary

Miss Krystal Geddes
Evolution Mining
Miss Zoe Wallace
Mr Clive Dingle

Mr Michael Dingle
Casey Cleary

Mr Nigel French

Mr Trevor Stanley

Award Recipients - Mundubbera

Citizen of the Year

Young Citizen of the Year
Community Event of the Year
Junior Sports Award

Senior SportsAward

Sports Administrator Award
Junior Cultural Award

Senior Cultural Award

Cultural Award

Volunteer of the Year Award

Ms Lyn Serisier

Latrell Combo - Graham
& Bessi Luani

Mundubbera RLFC - Intrust Cup

Mundubbera State School
- Girls Volleyball Team

Mr Blake Augustine

Mrs Colleen Whelan

Mr Donald MacGregor

Mrs Kirsty & Mr Rick McGovern
Cultural Award

Mr Barry Janke




From top left:

2018 Australia Day
Award recipients
from Monto,
Eidsvold, Gayndah,
Mundubbera,

and Mt Perry.




The Figures

In the financial year of 2017-18
Council distributed a record total of

in Community Grants across the

North Burnett communities.

Support was provided to help
community organisations to
run events and activities and
to individuals to access state
and national level sporting
opportunities.

During 2017-18, Council approved a record number of applications for
community support being received by Council.

The financial and in-kind support was across the six (6) regional communities.

Council’s total expenditure for Community Grants / fee waivers for the financial
year was $121,091 and consisted of the following:-

1. Elite Performance Grants
8 applications received - Total applications approved were 6 for a total of $2750
spent. 2 from Mundubbera, 2 Biggenden, 2 Monto.

2. Major Events Grants
5 Received - Total applications approved were 4 for a total of $10,369 (to 30
June 2018) — Monto Dairy Festival $5000 and Eidsvold Cattle Drive $5369.

3. Lifelong Community Grants

$24,847 spent in donations to community. - Of these $10,000 went to Rotary
House Bundaberg, Action Rescue Helicopter $13,004 and various other small
amounts for school bursaries/awards.

4. Community Grants/Waivers

$77,489 granted to community organisations for assistance with waivers/
various events/projects. 25 Community Grants were presented to Council, with
21 being approved. - Some examples of these across the region were:-

- Biggenden - Men’'s Shed — waiver of $631 in Council building fees
associated with cost of reroofing the old goods shed, and the Biggenden
Show, “in kind” assistance totalling $1,281

* Eidsvold - Eidsvold Rodeo and Campdraft, “in kind” assistance for Golden
Bell Campdraft totalling $3,621 and the Eidsvold Race Club Inc., “in kind”
assistance with 130th Race Meeting totalling $2,618

« Gayndah - Binjour Bowls Club — waiver of $502 for Council development
fees (new sign) and the Heartland Festival, “in kind” assistance totalling $922

» Mt Perry - Men’s Shed — site preparation for construction of new Men’s
Shed totalling $8,613 and the Race Club — Site preparation for construction
of new shed totalling $5,377

* Monto - Monto Silver Buckle Campdraft, “in kind” assistance totalling
$3,257 and the Monto Show, “in kind” assistance totalling $1,846

* Mundubbera - Mundubbera Enterprise Association — waiver of $3,911
for Council building fees and infrastructure charges for construction of
extension to Mundubbera Men’s Shed and the Mundubbera and District
Historical Society — Waiver of $4,124 for Council planning and building fees
for construction of new shed as an extension to existing museum.

« Regional - Community Christmas Decorations - $5,636 was spent across
the region on improving Christmas decorations.



STRATEGY, INNOVATION g

AND ASSETS

Development Services

Planning
Applications
2017-18

Planning

Development activity

Development activity in the North Burnett remains relatively stable,
Council has seen a marked increase of 138% for applications
approved in the past six months as compared to the first six
months of the financial year. Development Services now register
all enquiries, and follow-up to assist with the submissions of new
applications. Enquiries are also referred to Council’s Economic
Development Section giving greater support to expanding and
new development.

The team continues to focus on assisting intending applicants
through the steps of obtaining and implementing approvals
and assisting with procedures, development standards, and
sourcing appropriate external expertise—often resolving potential
difficulties before lodging a development application.

Application timeframes

The Development Section engages external consultants to
provide development application assessment services to ensure
timely and expert review. Pre-lodgement discussions continue
to help resolve issues early, creating savings and to streamline
processes for applicants, Council and the community.

Planning Legislation and Scheme

Council’s Planning Scheme is consistent with the Planning Act
2016 and is considering amendments to integrate the latest
iteration of the State Planning Policy. New information sheets
and website upgrades are continually being undertaken to
accommodate new legislation and to improve customer service.



Building & Plumbing Certification

Development Activity

The number of building and plumbing applications continue to reflect
the state wide trend of a slow growing economy. However, Council
has seen a 35% increase in applications in the last six (6) months
compared to the first six (6) months of the year.

Legislative Changes

2017-18 saw minimal changes in Building/Plumbing legislation. The
Commonwealth and States are currently reviewing standards and
processes in response to fire safety issues for external cladding and
non-conforming building products.

Development Records

In addition to the normal Development Service’s activities, Council
has continued the electronic scanning of all its planning, building
and plumbing files/records. Budget allocation for the scanning of
pre amalgamation development files has resulted in a marked
improvement in response times to enquiries and availability of
information for Development Services staff. The 2018-19 year will
see Monto’s records digitised, leaving only Biggenden to complete
in 2019-20. The hard copy files are now stored within the new
purpose built Development Services storage room at the Gayndah
Works Depot.
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Compliance

ANIMAL MANAGEMENT

The Compliance team have conducted a clean-up of the current
registration database, by way of proactively contacting owners
with overdue registration renewals. Most advised that they no
longer have the animal, resulting in a reduction of registrations in
the system. As at the end of the 2017/18 period, we have 1,131
registrations — compared to 1,226 for the previous year.

Compliance Officers regularly patrol all areas of the region to
ensure that residents are complying with Council’s Local Laws.
Our aim is to keep wandering dogs and dog related issues
to a minimum. During these patrols, Compliance Officers are
proactively looking for any other breaches of the Local Laws.

POUND OPERATIONS

Pound operations showed an increase of impoundments for the
2017/18 year with 176 dogs and cats impounded over the 12
months, compared with 152 from the previous year. An increase of
impoundments is partly attributed to the continuation of the Feral
Cat management program, and a joint action project alongside the
RSPCA to remove over 25 cats from a premises.

SEASONAL WORKERS (BACKPACKERS)

Work continues to be done in the area of camping and
accommodation for the seasonal workers that enter the region.
Processes involving education of newcomers by way of distributing
information pamphlets to workers and a new facility for campers
in Gayndah has seen the decrease in Caution Advices issued for
Unauthorised Camping. Our aim is to provide a more welcoming
experience for our visitors.
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Economic
Development

The newly formed Economic Development section works
closely with community members, local business, community
organisations and other Council departments in developing and
implementing economic and tourism initiatives to encourage
sustainable growth in our Naturally Beautiful North Burnett
region.

Active community forums and participation occurred during the
Economic Development and Innovation Strategy Community
Consultations which were held throughout the region in March
2018. The sessions provided the opportunity for community
members to have their say regarding the region’s future strategy
and direction moving forward. The draft document will be
available to view and make comment on prior to being finalised
early in the new financial year.

TOURISM PROJECTS

Tourism Projects undertaken and commenced in 2017-2018
include:

The finalisation of the RM Williams Australian Bush Learning
Centre Tourism Enhancement Project which includes Australia’s
first “son et illuminere” a magnificent illuminating light show
projecting on a locally inspired custom designed steel sculpture,
bush camp kitchen, children’s adventure playground and
dedicated workshop space for art and craft. These attractions
are proving popular and are being well utilised by the region’s
travelling visitors and community alike.

The Mingo Crossing Caravan Recreational Area and Camping
Park Upgrade commenced this year with major capital works
occurring in 2018-19. These works include: upgrades to
the water and sewerage systems, additional powered sites,
demarcation of non- powered sites, a new amenities block,
children’s playground and the regions first glamping tents.
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WORKING GROUPS

Strong levels of engagement and relationship building with
neighbouring Councils, State and Federal Government
Departments continue to be a focus of the Economic
Development section. Maintaining these relationships are
crucial as Council strives to ensure that our important regional
infrastructure needs (present and future) are being heard and
actioned.

Working Groups include:

»  Wide Bay Burnett Regional Organisation of Councils

*  Wide Bay Burnett Regional Economic Development
Advisory Committee

*  Mundubbera to Jandowae Roads Working Group

*  North Burnett Community Agricultural Network

*  Wide Bay Burnett Regional Water Strategy

e The Boyne Irrigators

*  Coalstoun Lakes Development Group

*  Bundaberg State Development Area and Port Infrastructure
Project

*  Wide Bay Burnett Minerals Province

e Boyne Burnett Inland Rail Trail

e Inland Drive

COLLABORATION

Collaboration with the following Government Departments and
Organisations:

*  Department of State Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning

*  Queensland Trade and Investment

*  Department of Agricultural and Fisheries

*  Department of Environment and Science

*  Tourism and Events Queensland

e Bundaberg North Burnett Tourism

* Regional Development Australia Wide Bay Burnett

*  Burnett Inland Economic Development Office (BEIDO)

*  South Burnett Regional Council

The section continues to focus on promoting our region to ALL
current and potential stakeholders. This is to ensure that our
stakeholders have a better understanding of what is available
throughout the North Burnett and what it is that we require. We
are building upon existing strengths whilst looking at diversifying
what Council is providing in the economic development space
in order to sustainably expand industries and markets to create
employment opportunities.



Environmental Services

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Council continues to operate six (6) waste facilities throughout the region. Of those six (6), Mt Perry is a transfer station with waste
being transported to Mundubbera. Council’s future waste strategy identifies Mundubbera as a principal landfill site. Water monitoring
bores were sampled during the year with no exceptions being reported.

On 17 January 2018, Council introduced new Local Law No. 6 (Waste Management) 2018 to assist with regulatory and compliance
obligations for Council and the community.

Total Waste Received

934.5ton ©607.5 ton

Green waste Construction & demolition
5,021 ton 1,137.3 ton
Municipal solid waste Commercial & industrial
6.1 ton 8.7 ton

Tyres Asbestos

Total Waste Recycled

8.3 ton 111.5 ton

BENEES Cardboard
Average No 14.8ton  532.7 ton
of Weekly 29% :
Services 1,265 Oll Scrap Metal

- Domestic

Commercial / Other

1.4 ton

Plastics




DRUM MUSTER

Agricultural drums labelled with the DrumMuster symbol can be
deposited at Council’s waste facilities by appointment. Containers
must be triple rinsed and be inspected on delivery.

FOOD BUSINESS LICENCES

Food safety remains core a role of Council with sixty-eight (68)
licence renewals, fourteen (14) new fixed premises and one (1)
mobile operator. Licences for community and charity events are
popular with an increased number issued during the year.

Number of Food Businesses as at 30 June 2018:

Biggenden 1
Eidsvold 8
Gayndah 25
Monto 22
Mount Perry 4 TOTAL
Mundubbera 16

*There are 4 Food Business Licence renewals still outstanding which are
being followed up by the Environmental Health team. These 4 businesses
have been included in the figures above.

HUMPHREY BINJOUR VEGETATION OFFSET
PROJECT

Humphrey Binjour Vegetation Offset Project is on-going having
commenced in 2014 when remediation work after a landslide
on Humphrey Binjour Road impacted populations of threatened
species, Pomaderris clivicola and Bertya pedicellata.

Regular inspections and maintenance of the offset continues
in accordance with the Offset Management Plan, including
weed control and fire management. Due to a loss of juvenile
plants, Monto Landcare has been commissioned to propagate
replacement seedlings. Both species are establishing well at the
site, with translocated plants and propagated seedlings flowering
and some individuals producing seeds. Management of the site
will continue until it is determined by Department of Environment
and Science that all obligations of the original permit have been
met.

FLYING FOXES

Flying foxes continue to be monitored throughout the region
with colonies occurring around Coalstoun Lakes, Gayndah,
Mundubbera, Eidsvold and rural surrounds of Monto. Council
officers were successful in dispersing a roost from a caravan park
in Mundubbera.

BIOSECUTY PLAN

During 2017-18, the development of Council’'s Biosecurity Plan
commenced following a regional strategy being produced through
the Wide Bay Regional Organisation of Councils. The new plan
follows the risk based approach of the legislation and will attempt
to focus attention on those invasive species not present in the
area.

WILD DOGS, PIGS AND RABBITS

Coordinated biannual wild dog baiting programs continued
with 1,415kg of bait being prepared. A total of 217 scalps were
presented to Council for bounty. This is an increase from 53
scalps from the previous year.

Since a bounty on pig snouts was introduced as a trial in 2016,
there have been 455 claims demonstrating an increase from the
previous year. The trial is expected to end when the total number
of claims reaches 1,000. Council Land Protection Officers still
continue to work with landowners with trapping and pig baiting
programs.

A new strain of Calicivirus (RHDV1-K5) was used for rabbit
management with a coordinated program for release undertaken
in 2018. Unfortunately, community participation was low.

wild dog

Feral Pig

NOTIFIABLE DISEASES

Council’'s Environmental Health section monitors notifiable reports
from Queensland Health. Analysis of information and identification
of trends enables a public health response to food and mosquito
borne diseases.

Queensland Health Disease Notifications (Year to Date)
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MOSQUITO MANAGEMENT

Council’'s Environmental Services team
continues to undertake surveillance
activities and promote awareness of the
risks of mosquito borne illness in the region.

RAPID SURVEILLANCE OF VECTOR
PRESENCE (RSVP Program) - Council’s
Environmental Health Officers and Land
Protection Officers participated in Aedes
aegypti mosquito surveillance across the
region in partnership with Queensland
Health. This mosquito is responsible for the
spread of Dengue Fever in Australia and
Yellow Fever, Chikungunya and Zika virus
overseas.

Mt Perry is the only town in the North
Burnett free of this mosquito. Given the
short light range of 400m for this mosquito,
community participation to manage this
disease vector in urban areas is essential.
Active  monitoring and management
will continue into the future. Additional
community education was also undertaken
at the Mount Perry Community Health
Meeting.

PEST MANAGEMENT - Council continues
to work with local groups, and adjoining
Councils, to assist property owners manage
and prioritise pest and weed management
across the North Burnett.

WBBROC AND NORTH BURNETT
DENGUE MOSQUITO GENETICS AND
POPULATION SURVEILLANCE - During
the year the CSIRO and Council undertook
a trapping and surveillance program in
Biggenden, Gayndah, Mundubbera and
Monto. Research has identified southern
Queensland as a high risk landscape
for the establishment of the Dengue and
Asian Tiger mosquitoes. New populations
of Aedes aegypti (the dengue mosquito) in
Gin Gin and Childers suggest mosquitoes
may have been moved by travellers from
towns in central Queensland. Surveys in
the WBBROC region have identified other
populations of Ae. aegypti along major

transport corridors including Gin Gin,
Monto, Mundubbera, Gayndah, Goomeri,
Wondai, Murgon and Biggenden. To
understand the history of these mosquito
populations and any potential for further
expansion south, CSIRO are using a
DNA-based method that is powerful enough
to compare family relationships between
mosquito populations.

ENVIRONMENTAL DISPLAYS - Council
held environmental, weed, pest, and
mosquito displays at various shows and
workshops across the North Burnett. These
displays allow landholders and residents to
view and ask for valuable information on
these topics. Displays are a key component
of Council's ongoing environmental
education program.




Disaster Management

Communication has been the focus for the Disaster Management
section during 2017-18 with the development of the Emergency
Management Dashboard and Disaster Contact Project.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DASHBOARD - The Emergency
Management Dashboard will change the way people source
information and prepare for disaster situations. The Dashboard
provides the community with one location to find information by
sharing data from all Disaster Management stakeholders in the
one interactive website. Information such as road closures,
weather warnings, power outages, fire incidents, flood level data,
emergency information and much more can all be found in the one
location, the Emergency Management Dashboard.

The dashboard has been designed to interact seamlessly with all
technology from a computer or tablet to a smart phone. No matter
what device is used it provides the same user friendly interface.

DISASTER MANAGEMENT PROJECT

During the year the Mundubbera community piloted a Community
Contacts network. These Community Contacts became the eyes
and ears on the ground and became the go between Council and
the community. The network was tested during Ex Tropical Cyclone
Oswald in 2013 and was a huge success. Building on this success,
the Disaster Contact Project commenced during 2018 with pockets
of vulnerable people and areas of

high risk identified throughout the

North Burnett region. Community

representatives have been

nominated to volunteer as a Disaster

Contact. These volunteers will be

equipped with training and a Council

Digital “radio in a box” which provides

them with communication back to the

Local Disaster Management Group

even during times of power and

telephone outages.

CENTRAL QUEENSLAND SEVERE WEATHER EVENT
The Central Coast Qeensland Severe Weather Event
in October 2017 brought about significant, out of season
rainfall which devastatingly impacted crops only a few days
prior to harvest. This event proceeded 7 natural disaster
events in a 7 year period which caused a cumulative effect
of multiple disaster events causing major environmental,
economic and psychological effects. The recovery of this
event focuses on strengthening our community into the
future.

BURNETT CATCHMENT FLOOD RESILIENCE
STRATEGY

In recent years, repeated and severe flooding has impacted
the properties and livelihoods of those living and working
in the Burnett River Catchment. Households, communities
and governments have worked together to recover well from
these events. However, the region is not immune to floods
of a similar, or possibly larger scale occurring in the future.

The Burnett Catchment Flood Resilience Strategy provides
a coordinated blueprint for improving flood resilience across
the catchment. It aims to ‘change the game’ in how to reduce
flood risk and strengthen the resilience of individuals,
communities, the economy and the environment.

This strategy was delivered in partnership with the
Bundaberg, North Burnett, and South Burnett Regional
Councils, Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council, Wide
Bay Burnett Regional Organisation of Councils and the
Queensland Reconstruction Authority.
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During the year Council established of a stand-alone Asset Management section responsible for two (2) distinct functions. The first being
the maintenance of Council’s asset registers, asset valuations and capitalization road numbering, naming and mapping and the second
being responsible for the asset condition assessments and strategic planning. This includes management of the road maintenance per-
formance contract (RMPC) with the Department of Transport and Main Roads.

OPERATIONS

Work programs for civil works crews were developed for the last
nine months of the 2017-18 year and programing has commenced
for the 2018-19 year while the development of a Parks & Open
Spaces program will be undertaken during the 2018-19 year.

Council mapping system (Intramaps) is continually being updated
as asset verification and condition assessment reports are being
generated.

Work has commenced on the development of a Parks & Open
Spaces Asset Management Plan and the first review of the Generic
and Roads and Bridges Asset Management Plans.

CAPITAL

Project scoping commenced for the purchase of vehicle mounted
road condition monitoring equipment which will enable inspectors
to assess more roads during the year while still producing a
repeatable and consistent result. This project is expected to be
approved by Council for inclusion in the 2018-19 Capital Budget.



WORKS

Roads, Drainage and Bridges

The 2017-2018 financial year was once again a busy year for Council’s
Civil Works department. The department continued to provide a broad
range of community services in the areas of roads, parks and open
spaces and airports.

FLOOD WORKS

Severe damage to roads occurred when Tropical Cyclone Debbie struck
the region in February 2017. Following joint Council/QRA assessments
and approvals, a two (2) year reconstruction program in conjunction
with road maintenance has commenced on 211 roads affected by
Tropical Cyclone Debbie.

Council was successful in obtaining additional external funds to
construct more resilient roads in addition to the ‘like for like' flood
repairs.

Greentree Road in Mundubbera has been raised, 2 concrete floodways
and a bitumen sealed-cement stabilized floodway constructed to better
withstand future flood events.

WORKS FOR QUEENSLAND

Works for Queensland funding was also accessed to undertake several
road projects across the North Burnett.

In Gayndah, the Warton Street project was completed to provide a
smooth road surface for patients being transferred from the hospital to
the airport for medivacs to larger hospitals. Crest widening on Beronne
Road was undertaken to improve safety and the construction of a
concrete floodway on Barlynes Road increased flood resilience and
improved the road alignment.

In Mundubbera, the widening of the single width dual lane entrance
to Archer Park should reduce the risk of head on accidents during a
sporting event. Burnett Street was widened and sealed to improve
road safety. Intersection and widening work at Mahoney Street should
improve road safety.

Percy Hindmarsh Bridge on Glencoe Road, Monto
damaged as a result of Tropical Cyclone Debbie

Greentree Road post works



ROAD WORKS

The reconstruction and bitumen sealing of Swindon Road, Mt Perry
should provide improved access to the gold mine for freight, workers
and the travelling public.

Other major projects included the widening of a section of Bania
Road at Mt Perry from a single width seal to a dual lane bitumen
sealed road, bitumen seal widening of sections of Cannindah Road
at Monto, bitumen sealing of a section of Berries Road at Biggenden,
Ban Ban Road at Gayndah and School Lane at Mt Perry.

2017-18 also saw Council deliver a $1.3 million bitumen reseal
program on 15 rural roads and 20 urban streets, a $970,000 gravel
resheet program on 21 roads, and a $200,000 bitumen rehabilitation
program across the region.

FLOOD RESILIENCE

Council funded $400,000 for minor flood resilience projects which
enabled the workforce to undertake works on 51 roads across the
region. This program enabled gully crossings and other similar storm
affected trouble spots to have some additional works to minimize
damage in future events.

DRAINAGE

Drainage projects delivered by the Civil Works department included
major work on Dareen, Barram, Grosvenor, Sandy Creek and
Kolonga Bridges and the replacement of a timber culvert with
a concrete structure on Coonambula Road and replacement of
concrete floodways on Derra Road and Sunday Creek Road.

BRIDGE WORKS

2017-18 also saw the completion of the Aranbanga (Deep Creek)
Bridge replacement on the Gayndah Mundubbera Road. This
project replaces the previous flood prone single lane bridge with an
elevated dual lane concrete structure which will be less flood prone.

Above - Bania Road, Mt Perry — widening from single
to dual lane road

Below left - Old Deep Creek Bridge on Gayndah-
Mundubbera Road

Below right - New Deep Creek Bridge on Gayndah-
Mundubbera Road




Fleet

Council acquired a new fleet management program in 2017-18
to improve its fleet management capability. Other operational
improvements include streamlining of ordering processes and booking
of plant services.

To ensure Council maintains a modern, efficient and safe plant fleet
and replaced plant at timely intervals to deliver lowest whole of life cost,
the Civil Works department took delivery of two new loaders, a backhoe
and a grader as well as other minor plant.

Aerodromes

Council’'s aerodromes underwent an annual inspection in early 2018.
Several of the remedial actions identified during the inspections have
been completed, in particular improvements to operations of Council’s
registered aerodrome at Gayndah. All remaining remedial actions
identified are currently being reviewed for future implementation.

Parks & Open
Spaces

A total of six trainees have completed their traineeships and are now
employed with the North Burnett Regional Council as full time staff
members.

During 2017-2018, Council’'s Parks and Open Spaces team delivered

several projects, including:

*  Moreton Street upgrade in Eidsvold - installation of planter boxes
and planting of trees and shrubs at the RM Williams Australian
Bush Learning Centre (playground).

» Tree planting at the Gayndah aerodrome.

* Newton Street upgrade in Monto - installation of new pavement
and planter boxes.

» Tree planting at the 3Ways entry to Mundubbera-Durong Road.

Cemeteries

Council continued its maintenance and upkeep of the regional
cemeteries, ensuring that the grounds and all graves are maintained
to the requirement of Council policy. Maintenance activities were
increased at the regional cemeteries including fencing maintenance,
lawn mowing, watering and whipper snipping, hobb development,
plague installation, columbarium maintenance and internments,
painting, grave excavation, tree and garden maintenance.




Technical Services $1,860,000
Water and WaStewater capital plan completed

DRINKING WATER QUALITY PLAN (DWQMP)

During the course of the year the DWQMP was reviewed as required under
the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 with Council being
compliant.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Routine Operations and Maintenance programs were completed
throughout the year including:

* Valve and hydrant marking

* Valve and hydrant replacement

*  Water Mains Flushing

*  Meter Replacement Program

* Reservoir Inspections and Cleaning

+  Online analyser service and calibration

+  Sewer pump station inspections and servicing

*  Sampling Programs

CAPITAL

A capital budget of $690,000 delivered the following water projects as part

of Council’s 5 year plan:

* Upgrades to increase the water pressure to the North Side of Gayndah
(Year 1 of 2)

* Installation of UV disinfection units at Gayndah and Monto Water
Treatment Plants.

+  Supernatant system upgrade for Mundubbera to ensure compliance

*  Construction of workshop at the Mundubbera Water Teatment Plant

« The 2017-2018 Regional Water Mains replacement program was
completed.

The Wastewater budget of $455,000 delivered the following projects:

* Upgrades to the dissolved oxygen infrastructure at Biggenden and
Eidsvold Sewerage Treatment Plants

*  Mundubbera Sewerage Treatment Plant - upgrade designs and
installation of monitoring bores

* Installation of a spiral screw screen at Mundubbera Sewerage

Treatment Plant.

The 2017-18 regional main and manhole replacement program was

completed.

e The sewer relining project ($180,000) was carried over to 2018-19.




Council Facilities

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

During the year Council’s procedure for recording of internal maintenance
tasks/requests was reviewed to ensure consistency and reportability of
requests. The Panel of Providers for Facilities Maintenance was again
advertised with successful contractors added to Council’s panel for
completion of any maintenance tasks for Council’s buildings and facilities.

CAPITAL

A capital budget of $715,000 delivered the following projects:

*  Regional housing upgrades as part of Council’s Housing 5 year plan.
These works included kitchen and bathroom upgrades, painting,
installation of new floor coverings and drainage works.

*  Public convenience upgrades which included installation of epoxy
flooring, installation of new fixtures including toilet suites and
installation of paper towel holders etc. An upgrade was completed at
Dowsett Park, Gayndah to vandal proof the walls and installation of
lights to deter further vandalism occurring.

»  Continuation of the regional lock standardisation project.

*  Regional Playground upgrade which included the installation of new
playground equipment and shade sail at Lyons Park, Gayndah. The
Gayndah Lions Club made a contribution towards the shade sail
costs.

*  Regional Swimming Pool upgrades as part of Council’s 5 year plan.
These works included the filter replacement at Biggenden swimming
pool and a pump replacement at the Gayndah swimming pool.

WORKD FOR QUEENSLAND (W4Q) - ROUND 1 AND 2

Council secured Works for QLD grant funding (round 1 and 2) and the
following Projects were delivered:

*  Biggenden Swimming Pool — Splash Park

*  Mundubbera Community Hall — Air Conditioning Installation
+ Ban Ban Springs - Signage

»  Coalstoun Lakes - Information Kiosk

*  Biggenden Main Street — Gazebo

* Gayndah - Claude Warton Weir Stage 1 Upgrade

*  Mulgildie - Cow and Horse Seats

*  Mundubbera — Archer Park — Change Room Refurbishment
*  Monto — Jaycee Park - Upgrade

*  Eidsvold — Gymnasium

*  Gayndah — Zonhoven Park Upgrade

»  Biggenden Lions Park — Amenities Upgrade

»  Biggenden Hall Roof and Kitchen Upgrade

*  Three Moon Historical Centre Deck Replacement
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This Community Financial Report aims to simplify and provide a summary of the financial statements into a plain English explanation for

our residents, businesses and other stakeholders.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial statements are formal records of the financial performance and position of Council.

There are four financial statements that assist in providing a high level picture of council finances - These include:

»  Statement of Comprehensive Income
»  Statement of Financial Position

«  Statement of Changes in Equity

»  Statement of Cash Flows

These statements are accompanied by supporting notes which provided details on the transactions which are included in the line item

balances in the four statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Purpose: often referred to as the Profit & Loss or income statement.

incurred for the financial year.

Operational Revenue

Council’s operational income in 2017-18 was $35.96 million. Grant
income represents 35% of total income; with the remaining 65% of
the operating income classed as own sourced income

- Total rates and charges levied (less discount) $16.284 million.
This equates to 45% of Council’s operating income;

* Included in Operating Grants is an advance payment of the

2017-2018 Financial Assistance Grant allocation to the value
of $5.95 million.

OPERATIONAL REVENUE

Diperaiting
Grants
355

Saley Dagmriom

10%

Shows all the revenue the council has earned and the expenses

Operational Expenditure

Council spent $27.40 million during the year on employee costs and
materials and services. These items represent a cost to Council of
providing services, operating facilities and maintaining assets.

Finance costs have decreased by $50,000 from the previous period
mainly due to a reduction in QTC Finance Costs and a reduction in
bad debts being written off in this period.

Depreciation expenditure of $14.10 million records the consumption
of assets controlled by Council over the useful lives and provides
an indication of what the level of expenditure on rehabilitation and
renewal of existing assets is required annually.

Depreciation



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Purpose: shows the assets and liabilities which make up community equity as at 30 June 2018.

Net Current Assets Total Liabilities
Council’s net current assets (that is current assets less current Council’s total liabilities are made up of current liabilities of
liabilities) are $26.06 million for 2017-18. Current assets and $8.829 million and non-current liabilities of $7.655 million.

liabilities are those which are likely to be turned over during the

) . Borrowings are made up of $0.63 million in current
next financial year.

obligations and $2.98 million in non-current obligations.
Similarly Provisions are made up of $2.46 million current and
$4.67 million non-current.  The non-current provisions are
primarily allocated to the future restoration of Council’s waste
mangaement facilities.

Total Assets

Council’s total assets are made up of current assets of $34.889
million and non-current assets of $1,045.576 million. The non-
current assets are infrastructure assets such as roads, water and
waste water which collectively represent the total of non-current
assets.

2017-18 ASSETTYPES ($M) 2017-18 LIABILITIES TYPE ($M)

M Cash - $31.28

m Trade & Other
Receivables - 53.15

MW Inventories - 50.46

M Property, Plant &
Equipment -
5104545

CASH POSITION BY YEAR
Five year trend ($M)

An increase of Councils cash position in 2017-18 is a direct
result of early payment of grant funding related to the 18-19
financial year and Council’s continued strategy to maintain
a strong cash position. 2017-18 has shown an increase in
Council’s cash position by $1.833 million from the 2016-17
I EREIRYCETS

Overall Council has taken significant management action to

manage costs and enhance its cash position. Council now
aims to have a cash position of between $15 — 20 million as
a benchmark. This level of funds is important for financial
sustainability — to provide perspective to Council’s monthly
expenditure of $4.2 million.




COMPARATIVE TREND ANALYSIS

Revenue and Expenses

The below chart depicts Council’'s operational revenues and expenditure performance over the
last five years. This comparative information has been provided to assist stakeholders to gain
a more comprehensive understanding of how Council is preforming over a longer period of time
than can be provided in a one year snap shot. It should be noted that on an operational basis
Council is generally making a loss, this does not include capital income received as grants nor
does it include any gain/(loss) on disposal of assets.

EXPENSES AGAINST REVENUE: FIVE- YEAR TREND

M Income M Expense

38,658,100
37,542,763
41,825,872
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OPERATING SURPLUS RATIO

(Target between 0% and 10%)

The operating surplus ratio measures the extent to which
revenues raised — to cover operating expenses only —
are available for capital funding and other purposes. It
is calculated as net operating result (presented in the
income statement) divided by operating revenue. A
positive ratio indicates that surplus revenue is available.
A negative ratio indicates an operating deficit.

NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES RATIO

(Target is not greater than 60%)

The net financial liabilities ratio measures the extent
to which net financial liabilities can be serviced by
operating revenues and is a short-term liquidity
measure. The ratio determines how well placed we are
to pay our liabilities out of current operating revenue
and is calculated as the value of net financial liabilities
(assets) divided by operating revenue. Net financial
liabilities (assets) are calculated as total liabilities minus
current assets, and a negative measure means that our
current assets exceed total liabilities.

ASSET SUSTAINABILITY RATIO

(Target is greater than 90%)

The asset sustainability ratio is an approximation of
the extent to which the property, plant and equipment
(PPE) assets that we manage are being replaced as
these reach the end of their useful lives. The target
ratio is > than 90%. In previous years there has been
a significant increase in capital outlays as a result of
natural disasters. The last 2 years has seen a reduction
in capital expenditure.
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North Burnett Regional Council
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Income
Recurrent Revenue
Rates, Levies and Charges
Fees and Charges
Interest Received
Sales Revenue
Other Income
Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations

Expenses
Recurrent Expenses
Employee Benefits
Materials and Services
Finance Costs
Depreciation

Operating Result before Capital Items

Capital Income
Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations
Gain/(loss) on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Net Result

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to net results
Increase/ (decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Note

3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
3(d)
3(e)
4(a)

12

4(b)

2018 2017

$ $
16,283,977 15,740,077
1,250,025 1,219,991
840,224 547,367
3,539,869 2,867,251
1,430,327 1,148,012
12,618,476 18,910,055
35,962,898 40,432,753
(14,520,870)  (13,275,544)
(12,879,764) (9,951,811)
(323,289) (373,756)
(14,101,948)  (13,941,652)
(41,825,872)  (37,542,763)
(5,862,974) 2,889,990
14,261,412 17,119,138
(4,691,940) (1,448,096)
9,569,472 15,671,042
3,706,498 18,561,032

(6,157,177)

(5,062,823)

(6,157,177)

(5,062,823)

(2,450,679)

13,498,209

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.




North Burnett Regional Council
Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2018

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash Investments
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Other
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Community Assets
Community Equity

Capital

Asset revaluation surplus

Retained surplusf(deficiency)

Total Community Equity

Note

10
10
11

12

14
15
16
17

15
16

18

2018 2017 1st July 2016
$ $ §
27,276,437 26,943,109 18,245,018
4,000,000 2,500,000 -
3,149,878 3,737,096 4,261,862
462,712 471,021 653,271
34,889,027 33,651,226 23,160,151

1,045,576,146

1,048,556,653

1,045,975,108

1,045,576,146

1,048,556,653

1,045,975,108

1,080,465,173

1,082,207,879

1,069,135,259

5,554,641 4,520,067 5,455,413
633,390 601,605 523,137
2,146,353 2,010,918 1,654,638
494,695 359,555 309,078
8,829,079 7,492,145 7,942,266
2,983,030 3,618,233 3,300,038
4,671,553 4,665,312 4,850,974
7,654,583 8,283,545 8,250,012
16,483,662 15,775,690 16,201,278

1,063,981,511

1,066,432,189

1,052,933,981

782,120,789
302,612,422
(20,751,700)

772,551,317
308,769,508
(14,888,726)

756,880,275
313,832,422
(17,778,716)

1,063,981,511

1,066,432,189

1,052,933,981

The above statement showld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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North Burnett Regional Council
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest Received

Rental Income

Non Capital Grants and Contributions 4 (a)
Borrowing Costs

Net cash inflow from operating activities 22

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Net movement on loans and advances
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 5
Grants, subsidies, contribution and donations 4 (b)
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings 15
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 10

2018 2017

$ $
22,608,245 20,953,778
(27,725,017)  (26,449,325)
(5,116,772)  (5,495,547)
840,224 547,367
483,171 543,321
12,618,476 18,910,055
(179,208) (192,787)
8,645,891 14,312,409
(22,512,907)  (23,445,216)
- 3,000
542,351 411,097
14,261,412 17,119,138
(7,709,144)  (5,911,981)
. 813,195
(603,418) (515,532)
(603,418) 297,663
333,329 8,698,091
26,943,109 18,245,018
27,276,438 26,943,109

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

a)

b}

c)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018 and have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012 . The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were
submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. This is the date the management certificate is
signed.

They comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB). Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting
Standards include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Therefore in some instances these financial statements do not
comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation gains and losses within a class of
assets and the timing of recognition of non-reciprocal grant revenue.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
revaluation of certain non-current assets.

Constitution

The Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in
Australia.

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards
In the current year Council has applied AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards -

Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107 for the first time. As a result council has disclosed more
information to explain changes in liabilities arising from financing activities ('debt reconciliation').This
information is presented in note 23.

Some Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective.
Those standards have not been applied in these financial statements. Council will implement them when
they are effective.

The standards that are expected to have a material impact upon council's future financial statements are:

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit-Entities and AASB
2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-
for-Profit Entities — 01/07/2019

Based on the entity’s assessment, it is expected that the first-time adoption of AASB 15 for the year
ending 30 June 2020 could have a material impact on the transactions and balances recognised in the
financial statements, in particular:

- Capital Income

This will be dependant on what Capital projects are carried over each financial year and how much is
externally funded.

The standards that are not expected to have a material impact upon council's future financial statements
are:

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 01/07/2018
This replaces AASB 139 Recognition and Measurement, and will change the classification, measurement
and disclosures of financial assets. The Council is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of
AASB 9. However, based on the Council's preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a
material impact on the transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements when it is first
adopted for the year ending 30 June 2019.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

d)

e}

AASB 16 Leases 01/07/2019

The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of AASB 16. However, based on the
entity’s preliminary assessment, the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the
transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements when it is first adopted for the year
ending 30 June 2020.

Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for
Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax ('"GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO
or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.
ludgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the
following financial statement notes:

- Residuals and useful lives of property, plant and equipment — Note 12 and Note 13

- Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Note 12

- Contingent Liabilities - Note 20

Provisions - Note 16
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North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 2a: Analysis of Results by Functions
The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows:

Corporate Governance

Council's Corporate Governance function comprises the support functions for the Mayor and Councillors, the areas of
financial services, human resources, administration, information systems, right to information, asset management, and
legal services.

Community Services

Community services function is to enhance and preserve the lifestyle of all residents and visitors by providing services
and facilities for recreation, leisure, sport and cultural enrichment.

Planning and Development

Council's Planning and Development function involves management of the development of the region and approval
processes for development and building.

Development control processes include town planning, building and plumbing services.

Transport Infrastructure

Providing construction and maintenance on roads, footpaths and drainage combined with covering a variety of

community related areas including, parks and recreation facilities management, weed control and weed washdown
facilities and street cleaning.

Waste Management

Council's waste operations are primarily funded from waste collection charges. The focus of this function is to provide a
high standard service for waste collection and waste disposal through the use of the latest waste collection vehicles, the
implementation of environmental monitoring programs and the development of landfill facilities.

Water Infrastructure

Council's water operations are primarily funded from water utility charges. The focus of this function is to provide a
safe, reliable and adequately treated water supply to consumers based on high standards of treatment, efficient
maintenance of infrastructure and sound planning technigues.

Sewerage Infrastructure

Council's sewerage operations are primarily funded from sewerage utility charges. The focus of this function is to
provide and maintain a reliable, efficient and cost effective sewerage system which recognises environmental values in
the region.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

3 Revenue Analysis

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, at the time indicated

below.

(a) Rates, Levies and Charges
Rates are recognised at the commencement of rating period.

General Rates

Environmental Levy

Water

Water Consumption

Sewerage

Waste Management

Local Disaster Management Levy
Natural Resource Management Levy
Special Levy Mt Perry

Total Rates and Utility Charge Revenue
Less: Discounts

Net Rates and Utility Charges

(b) Feesand Charges

2018 2017
$ $
9,626,618 9,244,010
(449) (745)
2,036,776 1,953,725
1,490,135 1,642,431
2,166,669 2,083,325
1,946,835 1,799,373
34,176 34,122
52,212 21,543
357,389 343,761
17,710,361 17,121,545
(1,426,384)  (1,381,468)
16,283,977 15,740,077

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon
lodgement of the relevant applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the

service is provided.

Community Service Fees
Building & Development Fees
Licences & Registrations
Caravan Parks

Water & Sewer Fees

Trade Waste & Recycling
Other Fees and Charges

(c) Interest Received

209,547 186,014
205,597 182,676
58,858 63,258
543,649 544,698
29,457 35,653
89,561 76,207
113,356 131,485
1,250,025 1,219,991

Interest received from term deposits is accrued on a pro-rata basis over the term of the investments.

Interest Received from Cash and Investments
Interest from Overdue Rates and Utility Charges

721,962 454,021
118,262 93,346
840,224 547,367




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

(d)

(e)

Sales Revenue

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
buyer which generally takes place when the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods.

Council generates revenues from a number of services and contracts for road and earthworks. Revenue
from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with
an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity.
Where consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is
recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.,

The amount recognised as revenue for contract revenue during the financial year is the amount
receivable in respect of invoices issued during the period. There are no contracts in progress at the year
end. The contract work carried out is not subject to retentions.

2018 2017
$ $
Contract and Recoverable Works  Main Road Dept. 3,432,197 2,623,110
Private Works 107,672 244,141
Total Sales Revenue 3,539,869 2,867,251

Other Income

Other Income relates to income arising from other services operated by council. Bulk water sales relate
to the sale of bulk water licence allocation.

Other Income 1,115,759 1,148,012
Bulk Water Sales 314,568 =

1,430,327 1,148,012




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

4 Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the

year in which Council obtains control over them.

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various

performance obligations under the funding agreement are fulfilled.

(a) Recurrent
General Purpose Grants
State Government Subsidies and Grants
Commonwealth Government Subsidies and Grants
Contributions
Flood Damage Claims
Total Recurrent Revenue

2018 2017

$ $
11,549,184 17,184,733
451,681 770,478
114,762 545,504
46,388 81,163
456,461 328,177
12,618,476 18,910,055

The General Purpose Grant for the 2018 year includes an advance payment of the 2018-2019 Financial
Assistance Grants allocation to the value of $5,949,734 (2017: 55,853,609 advance payments).

(b) Capital

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the
replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets and/or investment in new assets. It also
includes non-cash contributions which are usually infrastructure assets received from developers.

State Government Subsidies and Grants
Commonwealth Government Subsidies and Grants
Contributions

Flood Damage Claims

Total Capital Revenue

Conditions over Contributions

5,087,725 5,174,064
3,248,678 4,561,047
105,000 969,621
5,820,009 6,414,406
14,261,412 17,119,138

Contributions recognised as income during the reporting period are obtained on the condition that
they be expended in a manner specified by the contributor. An equivalent amount of cash has been
set aside to cover expected expenditure related to these grants, but has not been expended at the

reporting date, as follows:-

Non reciprocal grants for operating expenditure
Non-reciprocal grants for expenditure on infrastructure

5 Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Less: Cost of property, plant and equipment disposed
Less: Book value for unwinding of depreciation on restorations

Accumulated depreciation on disposals
Accumulated depreciation on unwinding of depreciation of
restorations

71,821 177,436
950,487 823,973
1,022,308 1,001,409
542,351 411,097
(11,680,520)  (4,128,082)
209,836 140,892
6,389,774 2,195,540
(153,381) (67,543)
(4,691,940)  (1,448,096)
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2018 2017
Note s $

6 Employee Benefits
Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their

duties.
Total Staff Wages and Salaries 12,015,200 10,453,114
Councillors' Remuneration 411,154 406,684
Annual, Sick and Long Service Leave Entitlements 1,941,025 1,881,629
Superannuation 21 1,541,335 1,395,041
15,908,715 14,176,468
Other Employee Related Expenses 549,509 605,677
16,458,223 14,782,145
Less: Capitalised Employee Expenses (1,937,353) (1,506,601)

14,520,870 13,275,544

Total Council employees at the reporting date:

Elected Members 7 7
Administration Staff 91 79
Depot and Outdoors Staff 116 115
Trainee Staff 11 10
Total full time equivalent employees 225 211

Administration: means employees engaged primarily in administrative basis of work

Depot and Outdoor: means employees engaged primarily in outside work, and those on Stream A of the
Award that supervise outside workforce,

FTE numbers were calculated using pure hours worked .

7 Materials and Services
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General

of Gusendznd 130,919 171,082
Community Services 2,701,636 2,296,175
Corporate Governance 3,711,278 2,512,972
Planning and Development 274,287 265,192
Sewerage Infrastructure 404,619 289,045
Transport Infrastructure 2,373,733 1,488,034
Waste Management 1,516,896 1,455,939
Water Infrastructure 1,766,396 1,469,372

12,879,764 9,951,811

8 Finance Costs

E:\;n:;;f;ts charged by the Queensland Treasury 179,208 192,787
Bank Charges 35,731 32,027
Bad Debts Written-off During the Year 14,657 48,306
Restoration Provision Unwinding of Discount 93,693 100,636

323,289 373,756
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2018 2017
$ $
9 Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation due to change in fair value

Roads, Drainage and Bridges (6,157,177) (3,120,868)
Water - (938,234)
Sewer - (1,003,721)
Total revaluations due to change in fair value (6,157,177) (5,062,823)

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at
the year end, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Should a term deposit have an original maturity of longer than three months, this would be classified
as an investment.

Current

Cash on Hand 5,950 5,950
Cash at Bank 883,140 2,575,828
Deposits at Call 26,387,347 24,361,331
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 27,276,437 26,943,109

Cash Investments
Investment 4,000,000 2,500,000
4,000,000 2,500,000

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date

relate to the following cash assets:

Unspent capital grants 950,487 823,973
Unspent government grants and subsidies 71,821 177,436
Total unspent restricted cash 1,022,308 1,001,409
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11

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery.
Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date.

Debts are regularly assessed for collectability and allowance is made, where appropriate, for impairment
by adjusting the assets carrying amount. All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June and any loss is
recognised in finance costs. If an amount is recovered in a subseauent period it is recognised as revenue.

Where Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 to sell an owner's
property to recover outstanding rate debts and the value of the property is considered likely to exceed
the debt and the associated costs, Council does not impair rate receivables.

2018 2017
$ $

Current

Rateable Revenue and Utility Charges 1,173,188 981,323
Other Debtors 949,852 1,410,552
Less: Impairment (65,492) (79,745)
GST - 313,282
Water Charges not yet levied 732,831 849,528
Prepayments 359,499 262,156

3,149,878 3,737,096

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other
debtors. There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges, fees and other debtors
receivable.

Movement in impairment of debtors is as follows:

Opening balance at 1 July (79,745) (40,212)
Amounts already provided for & written off this year 17,688 11,885
Net Increase in provisions (3,435) (51,418)
Closing balance at 30 June (65,492) (79,745)
Fully Performing Past Due Total
<30 days 30-60 days > 60 days
30-Jun-2018 $ $ $ $ $
Receivables — Rates - - - 1,173,188 1,173,188
Receivables — Other 858,328 24,147 52,789 14,5388 949,852
Less: Impairment - - - (65,492) (65,492)
Net Receivables 858,328 24,147 52,789 1,122,284 2,057,548
30-Jun-2017
Receivables — Rates - - - 981,323 981,323
Receivables — Other 414,094 880,318 50,080 66,060 1,410,552
Less: Impairment - - - (79,745) (79,745)

Net Receivables 414,094 880,318 50,080 967,638 2,312,130
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North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation, Items of plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000, and
infrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than $10,000 are treated as an expense in the
year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are:
- land

- Buildings

- Plant and equipment

- Road drainage and bridges

- Water

- Sewerage

- Other infrastructure assets

- Work in Progress

Acquisition of Assets

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given
as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees, engineering
design fees, and all other establishment costs.

Capital and Operating Expenditure

Expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construction of assets is treated as capital expenditure.
Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of
the asset is expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of
an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Valuation

Land, buildings, and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in
accordance with AASB116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Plant
and Equipment and Work in Progress are measured at cost.

Physical Valuation

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying
amount of each class of asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is
achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each
class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 years. This process involves the valuer
physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own
assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection.

Desktop Valuation

In the intervening years, management uses internal engineers and asset managers and engages
independent, professionally qualified valuers to perform a “desktop” valuation. A desktop valuation
involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, disposals and
changes in assumptions such as useful life, residual value and condition rating. The valuer then determines
suitable indices which are applied to each of these asset classes.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Valuation (continued)

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the
revaluation surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously
recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to
the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying
amount of the asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they
relate.

Details of valuers, indices and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 13 (ii) and (iv).

Capital Work in Progress
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased
services, materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour overheads.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each
depreciable asset, |ess its estimated residual value, progressively over its estimated useful life to the
Council. Management believe that the straight line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption
of all Council assets.

Land and cultural assets are not depreciated as they have unlimited useful lives.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the
time an asset is completed and commissioned ready for use.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that
increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the Council.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in
the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or
management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual valuation process for
assets measured at depreciated current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these
assets at each reporting date. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are
shown in Note 12.

Land Under Roads

Land under the road network within the Council area has been dedicated and opened for public use under
the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 and is not controlled by Council but is controlled by the State
pursuant to the relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial statements.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Impairment of Non-Current Assets
Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment
annually. If an indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council determines the asset's recoverable
amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as
an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment
loss is offset against the revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus
increase.

13 Fair Value Measurements
This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial
assets that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. Information on the fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities are contained in their respective Notes.

(i) Recognised fair value measurements
Council measures and recognises the following non-financial assets at fair value on a recurring basis:

Property, plant and equipment:
- land

- Buildings

- Road, Drainage and Bridges
- Water

- Sewerage

- Other Infrastructure Assets
- Workin Progress

Council does not measure any other assets or liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:

- Level 1: Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

- Level 2; Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or
liability.

- Level 3: Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability.

The following table presents the Council's non-financial assets measured and recognised at fair value at
reporting date. The majority of Councils assets are categorised as level 3 as prescribed under the
accounting standards, with a small number of Building assets revalued and categorised at Level 2. Council
does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as
level 1.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

13 Fair Value Measurements (continued)
(i) Recognised fair value measurements

Council’s policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year and prior year,

Level 2 Level 3
Note
$ $
2018 2017 2018 2017
Land 12 - - 12,833,905 13,124,150
Buildings 12 2,630,791 2,722,504 30,923,273 32,632,020
Road, Drainage and Bridges 12 - - 896,684,866 904,466,499
Water 12 - - 26,666,985 27,110,729
Sewerage 12 - - 17,751,668 18,362,735
Other Infrastructure 12 - - 31,684,770 32,543,009
Total non-financial assets 2,630,791 2,722,504 1,016,545,467 1,028,239,142

(i) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations and processes
adopted

The fair values of Councils assets are determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of
observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the
significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case
for Council’s non-financial assets included in the table above, which are of a specialist nature for which
there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued using a combination of
observable and unobservable inputs and therefore are included in level 3. Refer to Note 13 (iv) for further
details on the valuations approach adopted for each asset class.

Council adopted AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement for the first time during the 2014 financial year and
reviewed each valuation to ensure compliance with the requirements of AASB 13.

Council obtains independent valuations for certain Property, Plant and Equipment assets at least every
three years. At the end of each reporting period, an assessment is made to update the fair values of these
assets, taking into account the most recent independent valuations or the Queensland Government Cost
Index.

The following non-financial asset Financial Classes have undergone an independent valuation in the 2018
reporting period:
- Road, Drainage and Bridges

As at 30 June 2018, the fair value of Road, Drainage and Bridges assets had been determined by
independent valuer, Assetval Pty Ltd.

The technique used to determine the fair value of Road, Drainage and Bridges assets has not changed from
previous valuations and is deemed compliant with the requirements of AASB 13,
Further information on valuation techniques adopted by the council are included in note 13 (iv).

An assessment was conducted on all other classes to determine if indexation was required. The assets
were determined to be at fair value and as such no indices were applied.

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
The changes in level 3 items for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 for recurring fair value
measurements are shown in note 13.




"Alessa0au alaym saijod

pue suoiipuod jeao| uikjdde Isjiym 5|1oUNOD JBYIO PUE SBIIUBEE JUSLIUIBN0D ‘pasodsip 10 pamaual Uaym 13sse Byl Jo anjea aBenjes ay L IN|eA |enpisay
91E1S |ENUE 24N30NUISEU |EUOlIELIIUL UM BupjIEWYouUag PUB BJUBIRIRY -
‘sulewal | [njasn ay jo adejusaiad jeym sauiwlap Bupjuel
3y 'ajgesnaiasun Sulaq § pue uolipua) poon Aaa Ul Buiag T yim § -
"s}9s5e punoJlg-anoge 01 T WOJJ 195SE YIED HUEI HIOMBLIEBIY 3Y] '12S5e 2y JO 2N|BA UMOR US1ILIM —" u...:..__uEuu
Jo @dwies jueaiyusis e Joj suoipaadsul ayis |ensia pala|dwiod sianjes Uadxy - 2y} pue ayl| |njasn BujulewWal 3Y] BuILLIB}3p 0} Pasn Si PUE YIOMBWEL] ) 10 Ew..zwmmmm(
aWadeuey 1255y |BUOIEN AY) UO PIseq Passasse Bujaq UOIpUuod 3yl pue
Junysis 1255 Y3noJay} passasse uaaq sey |enuajod 2214495 FujuiBLLIRI BYL
S]IPUNDI JBYI0 pUE S31oUsEE JUSLILIBA0G
BIBIS ‘|ENUEL 2INIDNJISEIUI [BUOIELIRIUI UM Supjiewyouag pue aJuaiaey -
SOA]] J9SSE JO [IPUN0D BY] WO} SOUSPIAD |BUIBl] -
90U32591054O [BAUYIR] -
pue !sadid
1o speol jo uonjeiouajap Ajiea o peaj ABW $(10S aAl33eR) "3'9 — JUBILOALT - ‘pajesn| s Y alaym U
{peos 19NJ15U00 03 pasn sjeusjew ay) uo Suipuadap ajl| [NJ2sN JUDIBYIP B IABY [|IM asninBsn
e J0 3J1] 34 39348 Uea susaned adesn pue sadA} spIyan ‘Fa—1asse jo adAlL - 13SSE UJe3 'paunsuod Ajny aie Ja9sse Sy} Ul paIpogquia s1yauaq Jiiouod? 3y}
fuoINRSUCY 4o Aenb BUIBUG - usym pue pajajdwiod s| 19sse 3yl Yaiym usamiaqg pouad a3yl st 3yl njasn ayL
{81} |njasn ay3 1ayie ued S3ueUsIUleW JipoLiad PUB BUINOI Ylog
10 Ayjenb pue Ayuenb ay3 — seapoeld 23UBUSIUIEL JUBLIND PUB [BOLIOISIH -
43558 Ay} jo sajyoid UodnAsUD fuBisaq -
‘ (ssep
ay3 uo Sujpuadap) elep a|es 4o }s0d [en)oe Jusdal pue sajdipuud Jsay Buisn - 39558 18y} SUIIDNJISUDD YIIM PIJEIIOSSE $3S0D PRleldosse Aue pue (.oud,)
elep SulyewIyIUaq PUB JooqpuUeH |enuajod 201A185 JE|IWIS JO 19558 M3U B L1IM 19558 2yl Supejdal Jo 3502 Ayl 1507 Juawade|day

UOI2NIISUOT UBIIEIISNY S, UOSUIMEBY ‘SDIV 3431 Ag sanssi sapingd Bunsoy -

sjuauoduwiod }asse Jo 8y Injasn. -

}oogpueH uolanJislon
uRI{BIISNY S,UOSUMEY ‘SDIV 241 Buisn payuapl 219m susuodwod aeledag -

‘Aje1eiedas pajejdaidap pue paplodal
‘passasse uay) a4 sjuauodwiod asay ] ‘3| [nJasn 1UAIBIP B aaeY ARl

jusuodwod yoea aiaym (a0ens pue Juswaaed ‘Uoijeulio)) sjuauodwiod s3assy paspuauoduio)

531 O Yoe2 01Ul (PEOI B S3UR)SUI J0J) 19S5 BUO PIBPISU0D 3 Ajjeuliou
pinom jeym Buiyeaiq jo sdp3oeid au 28Ein0dUS sanbiuydal UOHEN|EA JUBLIND

pasn sindy|

uopiduasag

103384

:51955€ ||2 JO 2njeA Jiey 3yl SUIUILIBIBP USYM PRISPISUOD 213M JBY] 510108} 3yl 3Je SUuImoj|o) ayL

anjen Jiej 03 sdiysuonejas pue syndui uonen|eA (Al)

(penunuod) sjuswainsealy anjeA Jied €1

2107 2un[ OE papua Jeah ayi Jo4
S1UBWIBE]S |eldUBUL{ 3Y) 0] S3ION
[12uno?) [euoigay 11auing YMON




"9sn 152q pue 1saydiy Hay3
10} pasn Huiaq a1e aNjEA J|E) 1B PaN[BA SI9558 ||

‘JUBLUIBINSE3W 3n|BA JIej (J13aMO])
Jaysiy Ajpueayiudis uj 1nsas
PINOM anjea |enpisal ay3 u

(saseasdap) sasealoul Juesijiudis

san|ea [enplsal
Jlioads Jasse snolep,

3417 Bululewsy
pue |njasn

"JUSLWIBINSEIW 3N|BA Jlej (Jamo))
Jaydiy Apueayusis ug ynsaa
pinom sajed yun pajdope ayl ul
(saseasaap) sasealoul Jueajusig

U
pue siead 09T - ¢

sajey jun

yoeoiddy
SENILEI

“JUSWAINSEIW 3NjEA
diey (Jamoj) saydiy Ajpueaiyiusis
ul 1nNsal pjnoMm UoI3e|os]
u| sjasse jo aji| ululewads pue
|n§2sn ‘UoIIIPUOD palel Ayl ul
(sasealnap) saseasaul Juedljiusis

a|qeanasun
se— QT 40
g uoIpuUCD 03 MaN
Sy — 0 UolIpUO)

uonipuo)

yoeouddy 1509

EB T [3A

a5 1594 pue 1saydiy

anjeA Jiej 19944e ||im sandug
ul safueys moy jo uonduasag

sindu)
Jo a8uel paradxy

syndun
a|qensasgoun A3y

anbiuyaa]
uojenjep

Aio8a3e) uonenjep

adelamas -
sadnpnas Lyl -

Llepm -

so8plig pue afeujedq ‘peoy -
"S}3SSE S|I3UN0) JO 3N[EA dled 3y] SujLIlep 01 pasn sanbiuysal pue sdiysuoiiejas ‘sindul uonenjea ai) sasleWWNS 3|qe) Suimol|o) ay |
anjea Jiej 03 sdiysuopejas pue sindui uonenjea (a1)

{(panupuon) spuswainseajy anjep Jieq €T

8T0Z aunr 0§ papua Jeak ay} Jo4
SIU3LWIAIRIS [BIDUBULY Y] 0} SIION
[19uno) |euolEay 13PuIng YUON

sduping -
puel -




*SH2UN03D JB|iLS JSuleSe pasJeLIYIURg 3Jam Sajel

@sauy | ‘spalosd Jejjuns pajejduiod AQuadal uo paseq sem JYD ‘PadInosIno
Sl UOPANASUOd BIBYM 's1oafoud Jejiuuls paiajdwiod Ajusdal o3 Buipiodde
sappuenb aSesn pJEpPUE]S Je 519558 0) PALIO||E 1AM 51500 1PRIIP ||V {vE3)

S)5|A 315 YBNOIY] [BRUII0G DIAIRS BUILIBWSY JO JUBLUSSASSY -

jusLua218y Suiuielieq asudiaug s,/PUNCD UO Paseq 319m siel a8em Jnoge| 2injnJisesu|

pue 5351 2244d ..u.xaa:m 10 2121 19EU02 J3)ddns Buisixa U pased a1am PEOY pue speoy
B3P 3503 JUF3U '$2011d 53DIAIBS PUE [B41BLL ‘SSIBLINSS UOIIDNJISUOD [BUIRIU| Jog suoiedo|e
10 B1ep SuplBWIYIURG PUB OOGPUEH UORINIASUOD UBI[ensny S UoSUliMeY ‘SDIV PE3LIaA0 pUE ‘51500 §33IAIR5 ‘SIndul [eusiew pue Jnoge| pajewns?
Suisn (sse|d peos yaes Joj Juelsuod se yadap Sujpjoy) anaw asenbs ad asld - ‘suopeatyaads eale pue Jeau|) 3asse ‘(pajeasun Jo pajess pue ueqn Jo jeinl)

10s55% J0 adA) 3y 0} SauasajRl Aq PAIEIN2|ED SBM 1500 JUBWIBIR|dal JUBLIND

"19s5E 3y} Jo |ejjualod a3iniss pandxs 1o

PaWINSU02 3y} 12342J 0] UOIIE|DaIdap PRIEINWNIIE SSB| AN|RA JUILIND 55043
8y 5| 195se Juip|ing & JO an|eA JUSLIND 12U 3yl 3JewW jo yidap ou st aay}
249U "IUBUOdWIOD pUB| 3U3 JO 3NjEA 13)Jew ayl pue (pue| Buipnjaut) 3joym
© SE }3558 aU} JO an|eA 13MJel Y] UDIMIaq 30U 3Y) 51 Jasse Bulp|ing

€ JO aN|eA JUa.In3 12U a3 ‘paljiiuapl ag ued JasJew uj yidap e aiaym

*5)ISIA 3115 YSNOJY] [BRUS104 83116 BUlUBWaY JO JUBWSSIsSY -

Aiessazau asaym saiijod “Jan|eA Juspuadapul Ue AQ JUSLUSSISSE |BNSIA B LUOJ) PBALISP US3q 3AEY s3uip|ing
pUE SUORIPUO) [e30] SuiAjdde 1SIUM SJIDUNOD JALYI0 JO SAPUSTE JUBLLILISAOD san|eA jua.ind ssosd ay| 'sa9y [eUOjssa40ld pue saleulw|ald Joj saduemole
31815 ‘[ENUBW 31N}INASELUI [BUOIBLLIAIUI UG PAsEq ANjEA [enpIsay - Suipnjou| [enuajod a21Aas Je|Iwis SulAeY 19558 MBU € Ylim Juawade|dal

JO SISBQ BYI UO PAUWIALSP UBaq Sey Sn|eA Jiey ‘S19SSe 3yl 10} 13)Iew
aAl33e oU S| 313Y3 pue alnieu 1s|je|aads e jo a1e sSuIp)Ing [1DUNOY AIIYM

-2715 Ajiadoud se yans salngille A3y Ul 530UiaIp
104 Bunysnipe 1aye saiuadoud aqesedwod Jo saoud $3jes ay) Woly panlap
ua3q sey an|ea Jiey “s1asse Sulp|Iing |12UNoD JoJ 193JBW € S| 343y} A13YM

dnoig Alosiapy
1955y Si|eN1sNy Janjen Ag pauluwualap se sjusuodwlod 10 ainonuls Jad aold - -

1 : anbi 51 unoJ2e ojul Buiyey
*s9|es JUada4 Jod se asjaw alenbs Jad Mg - Sepad i S alm IR sl pue]
pue eaJe [BI0| BY] U| 59]eS 11833 Buimainal Aq pssasse 21aMm S1asse Ay |

pasn sindu| yaeosddy uopenjep sse|D) 1958y

:3N|eA J|gj pasuanjjul 1ey) S10128) pUB SUOIIRISPISUOD
3|j199ds 3y] pue S5E[2 19558 YIED $351| SUIMO||0} B4 "S5BJD 13558 Udea Jo) paAojdwe aiam sanbiuyoal uojzenjea 2iy13ads ‘(1uno) 8yl A plaYy $12sse 241 J0 an1eu palieA sy} 03 ang
ssep 19sse Yoea Supuanjjul s103oey Jigads
(panuijuod) sjuaW3Insea anjep Jled €T
8107 aunf 0§ papua JeaA ayy Jo4
SjuUaWa]e]S [eldueUl] 341 0 S3ION
|1puno) |euoiSay Nauing YHON




suoneyonb sia|ddng -

puUE ‘UOIIdNIISUOD puk Bulp|ing 40} SI1BY S UOSUIIMBY -

BlEp 13pUa) pue JIB4U00 JUBIBY -

sa3|ge] xapu| adld Bulp|ing -

ouple) Aq paAlIap SaAIN2 1500 -
e1ep Supjiewyouaq pue }0ogpUEH UOIIDNIISUOD URljRIISNY S UoSUljmey
‘SpIY Huisn s}asse Jejllis 10 18SSE JO UOIINIISUOD 10) Sajel ajnpayas -
SYIS1A 8315 YN0 |BNUSIO BIIAISS SUIURLUSY JO JUSWISSISSY -
1BP 1500 JUBI21 40 Blep SunJewyouaq pue yooqpuen
UOHINIISUOY) LIBIIRISNY S, U0SU||MEY ‘SDIV SUisSn 2138w aJenbs Jad aalld -
SHSIA 3315 YSno1y3 [BIIUS10d 221A13S BululBlWaY JO JUSWISSAsSSY -

elEp 1502 Juadal 1o elep Supjlewyiuaq pue jooqpuey
uoIIPNIISUOD) UB|[BIISNY S, UoSU||MeY ‘SDIy Suisn aJjaw asenbs sad adld -

"a)1| Suiurewsas

pajewIsa Jo uoleioualap pue Ayoeded 321AI9s pue 1500 JO ainseaw
8|qei|al B ainsu? 0} |3A3| Juauodwod 0] paledalEBesip alom s1955E 3]  2Felamas pue J3em

5ase3l [|e U] "1asse Jenaled ayl o1 aledoldde se ‘Jasse usjeAInba ulapow

ay1 Buisn 51500 JU2LWLR|da1 JUS1IND BY] SB PaulLLIR}ap SEM an|ea Jled

‘SjauUEy]

40} saJ13W sJenbs pue sedid o) Ja1awielp Jad Ja1aw Jeaul| ‘sud Joj yidap
pue Jaawelp 0} SUIpI1033e PAUILLISISP SI YAYM JO UORENIEA U3 ‘S|BUUEYD
pue sadid ‘sud ase sunonnselyu; ageuelp jo syuauodwod Jolew ay |

s3as5y adeuieig

‘SpeOJ 0] SISE] JB|IWIS B U0 PaulluIalap a49M S3JBLUIISa Uol}aniisuo)
"9ZIS PUB UOIIPUOD ‘B3 Y23 343 ‘UDIIINIISUOD J0) pash 3dAl jelslew Auy) sadpug
01 3ujpsodoe SulAlen uonEn|eA 3Lyl Yyum ‘Aj|enpiAlpul passasse s1 adpuq yoe3

pasn sindu)

yoeo,ddy uopenjep SSE|) 1355y

sse|2 Jasse yoea Supuanjuy sioydey dypads
(panupuod) sjuawainseal anjeA Jied €1

STOZ 2unf O papua Jeah ay} Jo4
SIUAWIIL]S [BIDURULY 3Y) O} 5310N
[12uno) [euoiday 1auing YHON




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

14  Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at
the agreed purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts
owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position and are expected to be paid within 12 months. The
amounts disclosed represent contractual undiscounted cashflows.

2018 2017
$ $
Current
Creditors and Accruals 4,010,848 3,081,232
Annual Leave 1,470,259 1,365,119
Other Entitlements 73,534 73,716

5,554,641 4,520,067

15 Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition these liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Current
Loans — Queensland Treasury Corporation 633,380 601,605
633,390 601,605

Non-Current
Loans — Queensland Treasury Corporation 2,983,030 3,618,233
2,983,030 3,618,233

Loans — Queensland Treasury Corporation

Opening Balance at beginning of financial year 4,219,838 3,922,175
Borrowings during the year - 813,195
Principal Repayments (603,418) (515,532)
Book value at end of financial year 3,616,420 4,219,838
0to 1 year 773,515 774,312
1to 5 years 1,657,027 2,210,419
Over 5 years 2,017,028 2,246,597
Contractual cash flows 4,447,570 5,231,328
Carrying amount 3,616,420 4,219,838

Fair Value 3,737,568 4,379,460




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

15 Borrowings (continued)

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $3,737,568 (2017: $4,379,460). This represents the fair
value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. As it is the intention of Council to hold the debt for its
term, no provision is required to be made in these accounts.

Mo assets have been pledged as security by the Council for any liabilities, however all loans are guaranteed
by the Queensland Government.

There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.

Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the Council. The amounts
disclosed in the maturity analysis represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date:

Contractual Carrying
Oto1lyear 1to 5 years QOver 5 years Cash Flows Kimount
s = $ $ B
2018
Trade and other payables 5,554,641 - - 5,554,641 5,554,641
Loans —QTC 773,515 1,657,027 2,017,028 4,447,570 3,616,420
6,328,156 1,657,027 2,017,028 10,002,211 9,171,061
2017
Trade and other payables 4,520,067 - - 4,520,067 4,520,067
Loans—QTC 774,312 2,210,419 2,246,597 5,231,328 4,219,838

5,294,379 2,210,419 2,246,597 9,751,395 8,739,905

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and the amounts are not
expected to be significantly different than indicated in the table.




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

16  Provisions
Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long
service leave in respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for
employee benefits are assessed at each reporting date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid
in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a current liability. Otherwise the liability is treated
as non-current.

Salaries and Wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting
date at current pay rates in respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an
accrued expense and is reported in Note 14 as a payable.

Annual Leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised. As council does not have an unconditional right to defer this
liability beyond 12 montbhs, it is classified as a current liability. Amounts not expected to be settled
within 12 months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-
costs, and are discounted to present values. This liability represents an accrued expense and is
reported in Note 14 as a payable.

Long Service Leave

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows
to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the
liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and includes
related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining
in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being
required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit
earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching to
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the
estimated future cash outflows to their present value. This liability is reported in Note 16 as a

provision.

2018 2017

$ $

Current
Long Service Leave 2,146,353 2,010,918
Total Current 2,146,353 2,010,918
Non-Current
Long Service Leave 196,615 227,612
Provision for Landfill Restoration 4,474,938 4,437,700

4,671,553 4,665,312

Long Service Leave

Balance at beginning of financial year 2,238,530 2,104,198
Long service leave entitlement arising 322,523 376,763
Long Service entitlement extinguished 66,421 (23,499)
Long Service entitlement paid (254,612) (218,932)

Balance at end of financial year 2,372,862 2,238,530
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16

17

Provisions (continued)

Provision for Landfill Restoration

The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure
of six operating dump sites and one closed site, decontamination and monitoring of historical residues
and leaching on these sites. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application
of environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates.
The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required; discounted to current day values
using the interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities with a maturity
date corresponding to the anticipated date of the restoration.

There are substantial uncertainties in: the details of the work that may be required; the eventual cost
of that work; the date of eventual closure of each dump; the length of time to complete any
restoration work, and the rates of inflation and interest rates over the long periods involved. These
uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. The
provision recognised for dump sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and
circumstances available at the time. Management estimates that the various sites will close at different
dates up to 2133 (115 years) and that the restoration on the various sites will accur progressively after
closing.

2018 2017

$ $
Balance at beginning of financial year 4,437,700 4,410,414
Increase / (Decrease) in provision due to change in discount rate (56,455) (73,350)
Increase/ (Decrease) of Provision due to Unwinding of discount 93,693 100,636
Balance at end of financial year 4,474,938 4,437,700
Other Liabilities
Mundubbera Art Gallery 6,856 7,125
Narayen Research Station 487,839 352,430

494,695 359,555

Other liabilities have arisen from ongoing accumulation of funds on behalf of community organisations
and a Lease. The funds held on behalf of community organisation will be used by these groups on
special projects in the future. The lease funds which council holds on behalf of the State are to be
invested into the facility owned by the State Government.
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18

Asset Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and
equipment that do not result from the use of those assets. Netincremental changes in the carrying
value of classes of non-current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset
revaluation surplus.

Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.

Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount
remaining in the revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount of the gain or loss is reported in the surplus in respect of that
asset.

The closing balance of the revaluation surplus comprises the following asset categories:

2018 2017
$ $
Land - -
Buildings 6,179,824 6,179,824
Road, drainage and bridge network 281,449,710 287,606,886
Water 53,745 53,745
Sewerage 9,611,773 9,611,773
Other infrastructure assets 5,317,370 5,317,370

302,612,422 308,769,598

Commitments for expenditure

Council has entered into various contracts for expenditure extending over a period of more than 1 year
from 30 June 2018. The largest of these is for refuse transport. The amount payable will depend on
the quantity and location of refuse over the remaining 4-year period of the contract.

Some of the other contracts have clauses allowing for price escalation.

The total amounts expected to be paid for all the contracts over the life of the contracts is :

Within one year 1,260,722 1,365,208
One to five years 1,583,867 2,616,083
Total Commitments 2,844,589 3,981,291
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20 Contingent Liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Local Government Mutual

The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In
the event of the pool being wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and
rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool members in the same
proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit
arises.

As at 30 June 2018 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any
liability will arise.

Local Government Workcare

The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance
scheme, Local Government Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards
a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self-insurance licence be cancelled
and there were insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland
Government's workers’ compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above
circumstances arise. The Council's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is $357,961 (2017:
$375,615).

Bank Guarantee

A performance bond is currently held with Queensland Treasury Corporation for councils contract with
Translink for the provision of the Long Distance Coach (LDC) service. The value of this guarantee is
$220,000 (2017: $220,000).

21 Superannuation
Council contributes to the LGIA Super Regional Defined Benefits Fund (the scheme), at the rate of 12% for
each permanent employee who is a defined benefit member. This rate is set in accordance with the LGIA
Super trust deed and may be varied on the advice of an actuary. The Regional Defined Benefits Fund is a
complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry
(Supervision) legislation and is also governed by the Local Government Act 2009.

The scheme is a defined benefit plan, however Council is not able to account for it as a defined benefit
plan in accordance with AASB119 because LGIA Super is unable to account for its proportionate share of
the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs.

Any amount by which the scheme is over or under funded may affect future benefits and result in a
change to the contribution rate, but has not been recognised as an asset or liability of the Council.

Technically North Burnett Regional council can be liable to the scheme for a portion of another local
governments’ obligations should that local government be unable to meet them. However the risk of this
occurring is extremely low and in accordance with the LGIA Super trust deed changes to council's
obligations will only be made on the advice of an actuary.

The last completed actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015. The actuary
indicated that “At the valuation date of 1 July 2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested
benefits and the scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date." The Council is
not aware of anything that has happened since that time that indicates the assets of the scheme are not
sufficient to meet the vested benefits, as at the reporting date.

No changes have been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee
assets and there are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.
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21 Superannuation (continued)
Another actuarial investigation is being conducted as at 1 July 2018, At the time of signing these financial
statements this investigation is still in progress.

The most significant risks that may result in LGIA Super increasing the contribution rate, on the advice of
the actuary, are:

Investment risk - The risk that the scheme's investment returns will be lower than assumed and
additional contributions are needed to fund the shortfall.

Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or salaries will rise more rapidly than assumed, increasing vested
benefits to be funded.

There are currently 72 entities contributing to the scheme and any changes in contribution rates would
apply equally to all 72 entities. North Burnett Regional Council made less than 4% of the total
contributions to the plan in the 2017-18 financial year.

2018 2017
Note S $

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Council
to the scheme in this period for the benefit of employees and 1,541,335 1,395,041
Councillors was:

22 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow
(outflow) from operating activities

Net Result 3,706,498 18,561,032
Non-cash operating items:
Depreciation and amortisation 12 14,101,948 13,941,652

14,101,948 13,941,652

Investing and Development Activities
Net (profit)/loss on disposal of assets 5 4,691,940 1,448,096
Capital Grants, subsidies, contributions

and donations
Recognition of landfill restoration assets

4 (14,261,412) (17,119,138)

(9,569,472) (15,671,042)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/ decrease in receivables 587,218 521,768
(Increase)/ decrease in Investments (1,500,000) (2,500,000)
(Increase)/decrease in inventory 8,309 182,250
Increase/(decrease) in payables 1,034,574 (935,346)
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities 135,140 50,477
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 141,676 161,618

406,917 (2,519,233)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8,645,891 14,312,409

23 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities

Non-cash
Not SR Cash Flow changes Azl
°€ 30junez017 O TOWS B85 30 June 2018
(new leases)
Loans 4,219,838 (603,418) - 3,616,420

15 4,219,838 (603,418) - 3,616,420
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24 Events after the reporting period

On the 5th of September Council passed a resolution for the disposal of valuable non-current assets (land
and buildings) to the Queensland Department of Housing and Public Works for social housing. Council will
dispose of the following parcels of freehold land identified as:

¢ L161RP28376 — 5 Hunter Street Mt Perry,

s L58RP28376 — 12 Mallett Street Mt Perry,

* |95P168295 — 16 Moreton Street Eidsvold and

¢ L145P168973 — 142 Heusman Street Mt Perry
Council will also resign as trustee of one parcel of leasehold land L305CK2352 — Reserve 105 — 69 Alice
Street, Biggenden and it will be disposed to the Queensland Department of Housing and Public Works for
social housing.
As a result of this resolution Council anticipates a loss on transter of assets with a current written down
value of $2,980,283 which will take effect in the 2018-19 financial year.

25 Financial Instruments
Council has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit Risk
- Liquidity Risk
- Market Risk
This note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) to assist statement users to evaluate the
significance of financial instruments on the Council’s financial position and financial performance,
including the nature and extent of risks and how the Council manages these exposures.

Financial Risk Management
Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together
with developing and monitoring risk management policies.

Council’s management approves policies for averall risk management, as well as for specifically managing
credit, liquidity and market risks.

Council’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set
appropriate limits and controls to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to
manage volatility to minimise potential adverse effects on Council’s financial perfarmance.

Council does not enter into derivatives.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. These obligations arise principally from the Council's cash and cash equivalents and
receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment
obligations. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC)
or similar State / Commonwealth bodies or financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements
of the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982.

No collateral is held as security relating to financial assets held by Council.

2018 2017

Financial Assets Note S S
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 27,276,437 26,943,109
Receivables — Rates 11 1,173,188 981,323
Receivables — Qther 11 949,852 1,410,552
Investments 10 4,000,000 2,500,000

33,399,477 31,834,984
Other Credit Exposures
Guarantees 20 577,961 595,615

33,977,438 32,430,599
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25 Financial Instruments (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the QTC Cash Fund and QTC Working
Capital Facility. The QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests in a wide range of highly
credit rated counterparties. Deposits with the QTC Cash Fund are capital guaranteed. The Working Capital
Facility deposits have duration of one day and all investments are required to have a minimum credit
rating of “A-“therefore the likelihood of the counterparty having the capacity to meet its financial
commitments is strong.

No collateral is held as security relating to financial assets held by Council.

Trade and Other Receivables
In the case of rate receivables Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted
amounts. In effect this power protects Council against credit risk in the case of defaults.

In other cases, Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal
business credit protection procedures to minimise the risk.

By the nature of Council’s operations there is a geographic concentration of risk in the local government
area. Because the area is largely agricultural, there is a concentration in the agricultural sector.

Ageing of cash receivables has been disclosed in Note 11.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Council is exposed to liquidity risk
through its trading in the normal course of business and borrowings from the Queensland Treasury
Carporation for capital works.

Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cater
for unexpected volatility in cash flows. These are disclosed in the Note 10.

A maturity analysis has been prepared and disclosed in Notes 14 and 15.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council’s income
or the value of it’s holding of financial instruments.

Interest Rate Risk
The Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its borrowings from the Queensland Treasury
Corporation and investments held with financial institutions.

The risk in borrowing is effectively managed by borrowing only from the Queensland Treasury Corporation
and having access to a mix of floating and fixed funding sources such that the desired interest rate risk
exposure can be constructed. Interest rate risk in other areas is minimal.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to interest rate movements is calculated for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the
carrying amount at the reporting date. Should interest rates vary by 1% in the coming year (assuming the
rates move from the beginning of the year and are held constant throughout), the council would not
expect a material impact on the financial statements.
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26  Transactions with related parties
(a) Subsidiaries, associates and joint entities
Council is a joint member of the Wide Bay Burnett Regional Organisation of Councils (WBBROC)
Incorporated.
WBBROC represents the interests of all councils within the Wide Bay Burnett region. WBBROC lobbies
Federal and State Governments on behalf of members Councils on matters of common interest and is
often the point of contact for other levels of Government seeking the views of Councils on a broad range
of issues.

WBBROC other member Councils are Bundaberg Regional Council, Cherbourg Community Council,
Fraser Coast Regional Council, Gympie Regional Council and South Burnett Regional Council.
The following transactions occurred with WBBROC:

Council membership contributions 21,840
WBBROC is dependent on contributions from member Councils.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, councillors, council's Chief Executive Officer and three General Managers. The
compensation paid to KMP is as follows:

2018 2017
5 $
Short-term employee benefits 1,355,877 1,103,193
Post-employment benefits 106,483 134,317
Long-term bhenefits 34,612 42,057
Termination benefits - -
Total 1,496,972 1,279,567

() Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled or jointly
controlled by KMP or their close family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and
dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

Details of transactions between council and other related parties are disclosed below:

2018
Additional Information $

Fees and charges charged to entities
controlled by key management 26(c)i) 990
personnel

Employee expenses for close family

26(c)(i 81,11
members of key management personnel 6(c)(ii) 8

Purchase of materials and services from
entities controlled by key management 26(c)iii) 86,618
personnel

2017
Additional Information D$1

Fees and charges charged to entities
controlled by key management 26(c)(i) 15,744
personnel

Employee expenses for close family

2 ii 74,4
members of key management personnel Gleil 50

Purchase of materials and services from
entities controlled by key management 26(c)(iii) 14,339
personnel
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26  Transactions with related parties (continued)

(i) The fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key management personnel were on an arm's

length basis in accordance with the schedule of fees and charges adopted by council.

Fees and charges charged to entities
controlled by key management
personnel

Details of related party

LGMA Accommodation

The CEO paid additional
costs in association with
LGMA Accommodation.

Fees and charges charged to entities
controlled by key management
personnel

Details of related party

Rent and Electricity Account

The Deputy CEO rented a
council house through out
the financial year and has
been charged the costs
associated with the rental
of this property.

Mobile Repeater

Cr Zahl required additional
infrastructure to be able to
access councils network
from home, this invoice
represents 50% of the costs
associated with installing
the additional
infrastructure for him to be
able to access councils
network.

Maobile Repeater

Cr Wehster required
additional infrastructure to
be able to access councils
network from home, this
invoice represents 50% of
the costs associated with
installing the additional
infrastructure for him to be
able to access councils
network.

Grade Private Driveway Access

Cr Radel engaged council to
complete maintenance
grading to his property. All
costs associated to this
work have been charged in
accordance with councils
hire charges.

2018
$
990
2017
$
3,295
750
750
2,292
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26

Transactions with related parties (continued)
(c)(i) Transactions with other related parties (continued)

Ridgehaven engaged
council to install a new
fence, all associated cost

Fence Replacement have been charged as
required. Cr Lobegeier is
the president of the

Ridgehaven board. 8,657

(i) All close family members of key management personnel employed by the council were employed
through an arm’s length process. They are paid in accordance with the Award for the job they perform.

The previous Chief Executive Officer's daughter is employed by council. The recruitment was
completed through an arms length process, with all past and future employment related
processes that are directly associated with this staff member undertaken by the General Manager
Corporate and Community Services.

The council employs 225 staff of which only one is a close family member of key management
personnel.

(iii) The entity purchased the following material and services from entities that are controlled by
members of key management personnel, All purchases were at arm'’s length and were in the normal
course of council operations.

- Cleaning Supplies - Floral Tributes
- Refreshments - Promotional Materials
- Hardware - Uniforms

(d) Outstanding balances
There were no overdue outstanding balances relating to transactions with related parties.

(e) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties
Council does not make loans to or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have been
provided.

{f) Commitments to/from other related parties

Council have a memorandum of understanding with Bendigo Bank to invest funds in the local branch, Cr
Zahl is a chair on the Bendigo board. The memorandum of understanding was entered into separately
to Cr Zahl's position on the board.

(g) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the North
Burnett Regional Council. Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between
Council and its related parties. Some examples include:

- Payment of rates - Waste Management Charges
- Dog registration - Facility Hire
- Borrowing books from a council library

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure, where they are made on the same
terms and conditions available to the general public.




27 Correction of Error
In the process of valuing the Council's road assets at 30 June 2018, it was decided to include the
shoulder formation component as part of the value of the road. In previous years only the 'protected’
formation, being that which is under the pavement, was recognised and accounted for.

The value of the shoulder formation was $197m therefore it was decided to restrospectively recognise
that component as at the date of the prior revaluation in 2014. This error has been corrected by
adjusting the opening balances at 1 July 2016 and the comparative amounts for 2016-17. The
adjustments are as follows:

As at As at
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Gross value of roads added 197,611,130 197,611,130
Accumulated depreciation - -
Net value 197,611,130 197,611,130
Previous Adjustment Restated
Amount s Amount
$ $
Statement of Financial Position (Extract) — 1 July 2016
Property, plant & equipment 848,363,978 197,611,130 1,045,975,108
Asset Revaluation Surplus 116,221,252 197,611,130 313,832,422

Statement of Financial Position [Extra_ct] - 30 June 2017
Property, plant & equipment 850,945,523 197,611,13o§ 1,048,556,653
Asset Revaluation Surplus 111,158,468§ 197,611,130} 308,769,598

The additional depreciation charge for the periods ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 were
calculated and was determined to be imaterial and therefore did not need correction.

A restated Statement of Financial Position has been included in the financial statements as at 1 July
2016.
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(i)

Maragement Certificate
Far the year ended 30 Jne 2018 ¢

These general purgode financal statements ke been prepared pursaant to seciions 176 and 177 al the
Locol Government Reguiption 2012 [1he Begulabion) and oither prescribed reguiremenis.

in acterdanoe with secticn 2120%] of the Regulstban we certlfy that:

the prescribed regulrements of the Locol Gowermmeal 4o 2008 and Local Government Begukatian 2002 Tor
the estabfsbment and beeping of actountt have been complied with in &l materis respects, and

the general purpose finenclal statements, ag et out on pages ? to 37, presand @ true and Taic viesw, in
accordanee with Australian Aoeaunting Standards, of the Coundl’s trarsactions for the [uancisl yeas gnd
financal position al ihe end of the yoar

e
Bayor Chial Executive Officer
Rache! Chiarnbiers Gary Emchary

pate: T October 2038 Cater {4 Ciciober 2018




® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of North Burnett Regional Council

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of North Burnett Regional Council (the
Council).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the Council's financial position as at 30 June 2018, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the management certificate given
by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.

| am independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensfand Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in the North Burnett Regional Council
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the financial report and
my auditor's report thereon. At the date of this auditor's report, the other information was the
current year financial sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability staterment
and the annual report.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council for the financial report

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 20089, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the Council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Council is also responsible for assessing the Council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the Council or to otherwise cease
operations of the Council,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Council.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to continue as a
going concerm.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Council to express an opinion on the financial
report. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the Council. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and requlatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Audifor-General Act 20089, for the year ended 30 June 2018:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

b)  In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

% 16 October 2018

John Welsh Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane




North Burnett Regional Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2018

M
easures of Financial PR Tirgat Actusls at

Sustainability 30 June 2018

Council's performance against key ratios and targets

1 ital i ivi
Met result {excluding capital items)divided Eetween 0%

Operating surplus ratio by total operating revenue (excluding -16.30%
and 10%
capital items)
- Capital a:penditur% nn the replar,ertievl of araater than

Asset sustainability ratio assets {renewals) divided by depreciation 90% 7. 78%
EXPENSE,
Total liabilities less current assets divided I

et financial liabilities ratio by total operating revenue (excluding thai 0% =51 18%

capital items)

The current year fingncial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Locol Government Regulation 2012 and the Finoncial
Maonogement (Sustoinability) Guideline 2013 . The amounts used to calculate the three reported
measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purpose
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018,

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2018

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordance with Sectlon 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial
sustainability statement has been accurately calculated, - =

M i i

Mayar g Chief Executive Otficer
Rachel Chambars Gary Rinehart
Date: /5 October 2018 Date: /§ _ October 2018




® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors of North Burnett Regional Council

Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year statement of financial sustainability of North
Burnett Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018 comprising the statement,
explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer,

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability staterment of North Burnett
Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensfand Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the
current year financial sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fuffilling the council's reporting
responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement
may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in North Burnett Regional Council's
annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018, but does not include the current year
financial sustainability staterment and my auditor's report thereon. At the date of this auditor's
report, the other information was the general purpose financial statements and the long-term
financial sustainability statement.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability staterment does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
rmaterially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012,
The council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council's future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

%‘M 16 October 2018

John Welsh Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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NORTII BURNE HERERRe
REGIONAL COUNCIEL
Policy Title: Equal Employment Opportunity
Policy No: 101
Department: Human Resources
Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer
Adopted Date: General Meeting —17/11/2015
Review Date: 30/06/2016
VERSION | MEETING APPROVED MEETING DATE HISTORY
1 Policy & Strategy Meeting | 02/08/2011 Biennial Review
2 General Meeting 18/11/2014 Statutory Review
3 General Meeting 17/11/2015 Statutory Review
Authorities: Public Service Act 2008 (Qld)
Local Government Act 2009 (Qld)

Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld)

INTRODUCTION:

The MNorth Burnett Regional Council is committed to the implementation of, and
adherence to Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) principles in all aspects of our
operations. This General Policy outlines objectives and strategies that were developed
through a consultative process.

The overall objective of this General Policy is to identify, promote and implement
effective EEQ strategies that will complement and enhance Council’s existing
management practices.

OBJECTIVES:

Through the implementation of this General Policy, the North Burnett Regional Council
aims to achieve the following objectives:

e 00 I

Employment practices which are based on fairness, equity and merit and
promote employee participation and productivity;

Fully utilise and develop the potential of every employee;

Increase employee moral and motivation by increasing staff confidence in
Council's human resource management practices and access to
employment and training opportunities;

Ensure that all Council policies and work practices are consistent with EEQ
principles;




® Achieve continuous improvement in the delivery of customer service
through a workforce which understands and is responsive to customer
needs.

PRINCIPLES:

While employee co-operation and involvement are necessary prerequisites for the
successful implementation of EEO strategies, the primary responsibility for
implementing the strategies outlined in the General Policy rests with General
Managers, Managers and Supervisors. It is imperative the EEO principles are
integrated with other forms of managerial and supervisory responsibility.

Council’s policy affirms that the North Burnett Regional Council is fully committed to
ensuring the elimination of discriminatory practices within our workplace. Council
employees, contractors and members of the public are encouraged to consult with the
CEO or Department Heads over any issues concerning employment.

POLICY STATEMENT:

The North Burnett Regional Council is committed to the implementation and
maintenance of Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) principles in all aspects of our
operation. Council will ensure that all corporate policies and practices do not
discriminate against any target group.

Council recognises that EEO contributes to operational efficiency by ensuring that
employees are recruited and promoted on the basis of merit and their individual
talents and capabilities. Council shall ensure that all employees have fair and equal
access to training opportunities.

All citizens are entitled to compete for positions within Council and no applicant shall
be excluded on the basis of their:

® race;
. gender;

® marital and/or parental status;
° age;

° religious or political beliefs;
° or any other grounds as deemed unlawful by Anti-Discrimination
legislation.

Council will endeavour to develop a staffing profile that reflects that of the
community. The North Burnett Regional Council is committed to providing a work
environment for our employees which is free from unwanted harassment of any kind.

1. Demographic Profile and Environmental Analysis

Specific strategies have been incorporated into this policy which are directed towards
achieving equitable employment participation rates which are reflective of our
community. These strategies are congruent with Council’s view that an organisation




which is representative of the community which it serves is in a strong position to
understand and meet the needs of that community.

The following tables demonstrate the progress that Council has made to date in
achieving employee participation rates are reflective of the community that it serves. '

Gender
North Burnett Regional Council (NBRC) Community
Male 66.8% 51%
Female 33.2% 49%
Age
{NBRC) Community
0-14 [0 19.9%
15-24 11.8% 10.2%
25-54 56.8% 36.1%
55-64 27.1% 14.2%
b5 + 4.3% 19.5%
Origin
NBRC Community
Non-Indigenous 95.1% 93.9%
Estimated Resident Indigenous 4.9% 6.1%
Population

RESPONSIBILITIES:

The responsibility for implementing and upholding the principles of EEO at the North
Burnett Regional Council rests with every General Manager, Manager and Supervisor.
All employees of the North Burnett Regional Council regardless of employment terms
or conditions are responsible for adhering to EEQ policies and guidelines. The
following outlines the responsibilities of individual Officers and Committees within
Council with regard to EEO.

The EEO Officer is responsible for:
5 Ensuring that the EEO policy is implemented;
Overseeing the content and direction of Council's EEO programs;
Participating in and contributing to workplace training;
Assisting with the training of staff on EED and related issues;
Keeping up to date with legislative changes and requirements and
disseminating information accordingly;
. Assisting staff with issues concerning EEO.

General Managers, Managers and Supervisors are responsible for:
. Raising awareness of EEQ issues;
. ldentifying needs

! http:/fwww.abs.gov.au National Regional Profile: Morth Burnett (R} [Local Government Area)
All figures are from 2010 except for the Estimated Resident Indigenous Population figures being from
2006.




® Preventing unlawful discrimination;
. Supporting consultative and referral processes; and,
® Proactively implementing EEO policies and practices.

Ultimate responsibility for each strategy outlined in this policy rests with the
designated officer. The Chief Executive Officer has direct responsibility for the EEO
General Policy. However, the level of success achieved by the EEO Management
Program and the strategies outlined in this policy will be dependant upon the
involvement and commitment of ALL Council employees.
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PURPOSE

In accordance with section 268 of the Local Government Act 20089, section 306 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012, a Local Government must implement and maintain a process for resolving administrative
action complaints.

Council is committed to ensuring that complaints are dealt with in a responsive, efficient, fair and economical
way with due respect to confidentiality of the complainants.

SCOPE

Council's Complaints Management Procedure is established with the following objectives of making it
easier for people to make a complaint and for Council to deal with complaints. As a result, Council intends
to improve its services and give the community confidence in Council.

POLICY STATEMENT

PRINCIPLES

Council intends to provide a level of customer service that does not attract complaints, however
acknowledges the right of persons providing feedback, both positive and negative, on its services and/or to
lodge a complaint about a decision or other action it takes.

Council is committed to providing adequate resources and trained officers to deal with complaints and to
record and analyse complaints data.

Council will endeavour to ensure that:

(a) anyone who is dissatisfied about a decision or other action can easily and simply lodge a complaint;

(b) complainants are provided with information on the complaints management process and, if
necessary, assistance to make their complaint;

(c}) each complaint is initially assessed in terms of its seriousness, safety implications, complexity and
degree of urgency;

(d) Council officers will receive complaints in a professional manner and welcome valid feedback as an
opportunity for improvement of the Council's administrative practices;

(e) complaints are resolved as quickly as possible, preferably on first contact if the complaint is
straightforward;

(fi complainants are advised of their appeal rights at the relevant stages of the complaint management
process;

(g) complainants will be provided with a written statement of outcomes, including details of the reasons
for the outcome at the relevant stages of the decision-making process;

(h) people with particular needs are assisted — for example people who are in any way disadvantaged
by intellectual or physical disability, education, language ability or any other impairment.

CONFIDENTIALITY
Parties to a complaint are responsible for ensuring confidentiality at all times, with respect to both verbal
discussions and written documentation relating to the request.

The number of people involved in the resolution of a complaint, will be kept to an appropriate level. The
number will also be limited to those with a genuine need to know, or need to be involved. A complainant will
be required to provide some personal details including contact information. Anonymous complaints will not
be accepted.

COMMUNICATION
In order to publicise the complaints management process, Council will place this document on its website
and will train new and existing staff on the complaints management process.

POLICY 116 Administrative Action Complaints Page 1 of 3
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TAKING A COMPLAINT FURTHER
If Council decides not to undertake a review of the action, Council will inform the complainant that a complaint
may be lodged with the Queensland Ombudsman or other relevant complaint entity.

It is also recognised that a complainant is also entitled to have a matter reviewed if they are still dissatisfied
with the outcome of Council's review process.

Address: Level 18, 53 Albert Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
Postal Address: GPO Box 3314, Brisbane QLD 4001
Telephone: 07 3005 Y000

Toll Free: 1800 068 908

Email: ombudsman@ombudsman.gld.gov.au

RELEVANT LAW

Local Government Act 2009
Local Government Regulation 2012

RELATED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

All Council policies and procedures must be taken into consideration when considering or investigating a
complaint under the complaints management process. Complaints will be dealt with in accordance with
Council Complaints Management Procedure.

RELATED FORMS

il
DEFINITIONS
Term Definition
Administrative Action  is a complaint that-
Complaint a) is about an administrative action of Council including the following, for
example-
(i} a decision, or failure to make a decision, including a failure to
provide a written statement of reasons for a decision,;

(ii) an act, or failure to do an act;
(iii) the formulation of a proposal or intention;
{iv) the making of a recommendation; and

b) is made by an affected person.

Effected Person is a person who is apparently directly affected by an administrative action of
Council,

Complaints is a process for resolving complaints about administrative actions of Council that:

Management Process a) covers all administrative action complaints made to Council;

b) requires Council to quickly and efficiently respond to complaints in a fair
and objective way,

¢) includes the criteria considered when assessing whether to investigate a
complaint;

d) requires Council to inform an affected person of Council's decision about
the complaint and the reasons for the decision, unless the complaint was
made anonymously.

Natural Justice or procedural fairness is giving someone who might be adversely affected by a
decision a fair hearing prior to the decision being made.

Review to undertake a second or repeated examination of a past event or decision, taking
into consideration the facts and circumstances of such event or decision.

Council is the North Burnett Regional Council.

Council Officer includes a permanent, temporary, casual or contractor employed by Council.

MagiQ Documents Council's electronic document records management system

POLICY 116 Administrative Action Complaints Page 2 of 3
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Legislative Requireme

Compliance

Local Government Act 2009
Identifying beneficial enterprises (s41)

A local government’s annual report for each financial year must contain a list of all the beneficial
enterprises that the local government conducted during the financial year.

Identifying significant business activities (s45)

Alocal government’s annual report for each financial year must-

(a) contain a list of all the business activities that the local government conducted during the
financial year; and

(b) identify the business activities that are significant business activities; and

(c) state whether or not the competitive neutrality principle was applied to the significant business
activities, and if the principle was not applied, the reason why it was not applied; and

(d) state whether any of the significant business activities were not conducted in the preceding
financial year, ie whether there are any new significant business activities.

Local Government Regulation 2012 - Division 3 ‘Annual Report’

Preparation of Annual Report (s182)

Adopt Annual Report within one month after the QAO provides certification.

Annual Report placed on council website within two week after council has adopted it.
General Purpose Financial Statements (s183)

The Annual Report for a financial year must contain:-

(a) the general purpose financial statement for the financial year, audited by the auditor-general;
and

(b) the current-year financial sustainability statement for the financial year, audited by the auditor-
general; and

(c) the long term financial sustainability statement for the financial year; and

(d) the auditor-general’s audit reports about the general purpose financial statements and the
current year sustainability statement.

Community Financial Report (s184)

The Annual Report must contain the community financial report for the financial year.
Particular Resolutions (s185)

The Annual Report for a financial year must contain:-

(a) a copy of the resolutions made during the financial year under s250(1); and

(b) a list of any resolutions made during the financial year under s206(2).

Nil

Refer to section: Financial Statements, Note 26

Refer to section: Financial Statements, Note 26

No - Cost of implementation outweighs the potential benefit

No changes

Refer to section: Financial Statements

Refer to section: Community Financial Report

Adopted at Policy and Planning Meeting - 02/04/2013,
details in 2012/13 Annual Report. This policy was reviewed 2017-18 with no changes required.

Nil



Legislative Requirement

Compliance

Councillors (s186)

(a) for each councillor, the total remuneration, including superannuation contributions, paid to the

councillor during the financial year; and

(b) the expenses incurred by, and the facilities provided to each councillor during the financial
year under the local government's expenses reimbursement policy; and

(c) the number of local government meetings that each councillor attended during the financial
year; and

(d) the total number of the following during the financial year-

(i) orders and recommendations made under s180(2) or (4); and
(ii) orders made under s181; and

(e) each of the following during the financial year-

(i) the name of each councillor for whom an order or recommendation was made under s180

of the Act or and order was under s181 of the Act;

(i) a description of the misconduct or inappropriate conduct engaged in by each of the
councillors;

(iii) a summary of the order or recommendation made for each councillor; and

Council pays the following remuneration rates based on the Local Government Remuneration
and Discipline Tribunal 2017 Report. In addition the total remuneration, superannuation and
expenses incurred by each Councillor during the financial year is as follows.

A full copy of Council's Reimbursement of Expenses and Provision of Facilities for Mayor and
Councillors—Policy is available at Council’'s website (Policy 103). This policy was reviewed and
amendments were made and adopted by Council on 1 March 2017.

Rem?l?esr'ztion Con:tsrlilll)):tzons Incidentals Facilities
Cr Rachel Chambers $101,631.00 $12,196.00 - $23,834.06
Cr Faye Whelan $58,633.00 $7,306.00 - $12,697.96
Cr John Bowen $50,815.00 $6,098.00 - $15,432.95
Cr Paul Lobegeier $50,815.00 $6,098.00 $436.00 $16,476,71
Cr Robbie Radel $45,510.00 $5,461.00 - $13,943.88
Cr Peter Webster $52,769.00 $6,332.00 $289.00 $12,293.07
Cr John Zahl $50,815.00 $6,098.00 - $7,484.32
Total $410,988.00 $49,589.00 $725.00 $102,162.95
Council provides vehicles for Council related travel to all Councillors.

Coneral | folct® | T speci

Cr Rachel Chambers 10 " 1" 1
Cr Faye Whelan 1 10 10 1
Cr John Bowen 12 10 10 1
Cr Paul Lobegeier 12 " 1" 1
Cr Robbie Radel 11 9 9 1
Cr Peter Webster 12 9 9 1
Cr John Zahl 12 1 1 1

Nil

Nil



Legislative Requirement

Compliance

(f) the number of each of the following during the financial year-

(i) complaints about the conduct or performance of councillors for which no further action
was taken under s176¢(2) of the Act;

(i) complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under s176c¢(3)(a)(i) of the Act;
(iii) complaints referred to the mayor under s176c(4)(a) of the Act;

(iv) complaints referred to the department’s chief executive under s176c(4)(a) of the Act;
(v) complaints assessed by the chief executive officer as being about official misconduct;
(vi) complaints heard by a regional conduct review panel;

(vii) complaints heard bv the tribunal:

Administrative Action Complaints (s187)
(1) The Annual Report for a financial year must contain-

(a) a statement about the local government’'s commitment to dealing fairly with administrative
action complaints; and

(b) a statement about how the local governments has implemented its complaints management
process, including an assessment of the local government'’s performance in resolving complaints
under the process.

(2) The Annual Report must also contain particulars of-

(a) the number of the following during the financial year-

(i) administrative action complaints made to the local government;

(i) administrative action complaints resolved by the local government under the complaints
management process;

(iii) administrative action complaints not resolved by the local government under the
complaints management process; and

(b) the number of administrative action complaints under paragraph (a)(iii) that were made in a
previous financial year.

Overseas Travel (s188)

Nil

Refer to section: Statutory Policies
Administrative Action Complaints - Policy 116

(1) The Annual Report for a financial year must contain the following information about any overseas travel made by a councillor or local government employee in an official capacity during the

financial year-
(a) for a councillor - the name of the councillor;

(b) for a local government employee - the name of, and position held by the local government
employee;

(c) the destination of the overseas travel;
(d) the purpose of the overseas travel;
(d) the cost of the overseas travel;

(2) The Annual Report may also contain any other information about the overseas travel the local
government considers relevant.

Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations (s189)
The Annual Report for a financial year must contain a summary of-

(a) the local government'’s expenditure for the financial year on grants to community
organisations; and

(b) expenditure from each councillor’s discretionary fund, including-
(i) the name of each community organisation to which an amount was allocated from the
fund; and
(i) the amount and purpose of the allocation;

Other contents (s190)

(1) The Annual Report for a financial year must contain the following information-

(a) the chief executive officer’'s assessment of the local government’s progress towards
implementing its 5 year corporate plan and annual operational plan.

Nil
Nil
N/A

Not applicable

Not applicable

Nil

Refer to section: Community Grants & Donations

Nil

RESOLUTION 2018/181

Moved: Cr Paul Lobegeier

Seconded: Cr Robert Radel

That North Burnett Regional Council receives the Q4 Operational Plan report for the 2017-2018
financial year.



Legislative Requirement

Compliance

(b) particulars of other issues relevant to making an informed assessment of the local
government’s operations and performance in the financial year;

(c) an annual operations report for each commercial business unit;

(d) details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility or activity-

(i) supplied by another local government under an agreement for conducting a joint
government activity; and
(ii) for which the local government levied special rates or charges for the financial year;

(e) the number of invitations to change tenders under s228(7) during the financial year;

(f) a list of the registers kept by the local government;

Refer to section: Financial Statements

Not applicable

(i) Nil

(ii) In line with Council’s ongoing commitment to accountability and transparency and in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 (the Act) and Section 190(1)(d)(ii) of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) details of Council levies and charges are
presented below.

This section also details organisational information regarding staff policies and other information
considered of interest in an Annual Report.

All special and separate levies and charges listed apply for the 2017-18 financial year.
Separate Charge — Natural Resource Management Levy

That in accordance with Section 92(5) of the Act and Chapter 4 Part 8 of the Regulation and

on the basis of the principles set out in Council’s Revenue Statement, Council make and levy

a Separate Charge — Natural Resources Management Levy of $52.00 for the year ended 30
June 2018 to be levied equally on all rateable properties within the Council area for the purpose
of offsetting the weed and animal pest control measure combined with other Natural Resource
function within the region.

Separate Charge — Local Disaster Management Levy

That in accordance with Section 92(5) of the Act and Chapter 4 Part 8 of the Regulation and

on the basis of the principles set out in Council’s Revenue Statement and Policy 261 — Local
Disaster Management Levy, Council make and levy a Separate Charge — Local Disaster
Management Levy of $5.00 for the year ended 30 June 2018 to be levied equally on all rateable
properties within the Council area to assist in Councils capability to meet its obligations in times
of a disaster and contribute toward the ongoing operation of disaster preparedness facilities

Separate Charge — Landfill Management Levy

That in accordance with Section 92(5) of the Act and Chapter 4 Part 8 of the Regulation and

on the basis of the principles set out in Council’'s Revenue Statement and Policy 261 — Landfill
Management Levy, Council make and levy a Separate Charge — Landfill Management Levy of
$99.00 for the year ended 30 June 2018 to be levied equally on all rateable properties within
the Council area for the purpose of offsetting the costs of Landfill Management, compliance and
future close out provisions

Special Charge - Road & Drainage Works Shand Street Subdivision, Mt Perry (Shand,
Hunter & Mason Streets)

That in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act and Chapter 4 Part 6 of the Regulation, Council
will make and levy a special charge on each parcel of land to recoup the cost of the works

and the finance costs incurred by Council borrowing funds over ten (10) years to complete the
associated project, to provide road infrastructure and/or stormwater drainage infrastructure to the
unfinished Shand Street Subdivision.

Nil

. Asbestos Register

. Local Law Register

. Election Gifts Register

. Significant Business Register

. Delegations Register

. Statement of Interest Register: Councillors

. Statement of Interest Register: Senior Contract Staff
. Asset Register

. Gift Register

. Beneficial Enterprises Register

. Cost-Recovery Fees Register

. Contract with Lobbyists Register

. Road Map Register

. Local Heritage Register

. Related Parties Register

. Conflict of Interest Register

. Development Applications Register / Exemptions Certificate Register
. Designations Register

. Infrastructure Charges Register

. Private Certifier Application Register



Legislative Requirement

Compliance

(g) a summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local government;

(h) the report on the internal audit for the financial year;

(i) a statement about the local government’s activities during the financial year to implement its
plan for equal opportunity in employment;

(j) a summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under s49 for competitive
neutrality complaints;

(k) the local government’s responses in the financial year on the QCA’'s recommendations on any
competitive neutrality complaints under s52(3).

Type: Partial Water Relief
Number of Properties: 11
Total Cost: $10,613.22

Council’'s Audit and Risk Committee continues to meet regularly pursuant to fulfilling Council’s
corporate governance obligations and oversight. During the reporting period, the Audit and Risk
Committee met on:

1. 15 August 2017

2. 12 October 2017

3. 5 March 2018

4.28 May 2018
Council’'s Audit and Risk Committee consists of appropriate membership being two (2) external
members, two (2) councillors, including the Chair, Cr Rachel Chambers. Council’s internal
audit function conducted reviews based on the 3-year Audit Plan — 2015-2018. The Audit and
Risk Committee adopted a new 3 year plan at its meeting held on 28 May 2018 for the period
2019-2020. This 3 year audit plan continues to have a strong focus on compliance with policies,
legislation and the risk management framework.

Refer to General Policy: Equal Employment Opportunity

Nil

Nil

(2) In this section - annual operations report, for a commercial business unit, means a document that contains the following information for the previous financial year-

(a) information that allows an informed assessment of the unit's operations, including a
comparison with the unit's annual performance plan;

(b) particulars of any changes made to the unit's annual performance plan for the previous
financial year;

(c) particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit’s;
(i) financial position; and
(ii) operating surplus and deficit; and
(iii) prospects.

(d) particulars of any directions the local government gave the unit.
201 Annual Report must detail remuneration

(1) The Annual Report of a local government must state-

(a) the total of all remuneration packages that are payable (in the year to which the annual report
relates) to the senior management of the local government; and

(b) the number of employees in senior management who are being paid each band of
remuneration.

(2) The senior management of a local government, consists of the chief executive officer and all
senior executive employees of the local government.

(3) Each band of remuneration is an increment of $100,000.00

(4) To remove any doubt, it is declared that nothing in this section requires the exact salary of any
employee in senior management to be separately stated in the annual report.

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Council is required to report remuneration packages payable to the Chief Executive Officer

and senior contract employees in bands. Senior contract employees are employees that report
directly to the Chief Executive Officer and are considered to be in a senior position e.g. General
Managers. Remuneration packages for 2017-18 were four (4) senior contract employees each
with a total remuneration package in the range of $200,000 to $300,000.

In 2017-18 there were four (4) senior contract employee positions. One of these positions
was filled by a Labour Hire firm. This position fit within the $100,000 - $200,000 remuneration
package.

The total remuneration packages payable in 2017-18 to senior management = $769,481.74

Package No. of senior
Range contract employees
100,000-200,000 2

200,000-300,000 1
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